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Up 20bps

VAN

» Results ahead of market expectations
» Good growth across all Precision Engineering verticals

» Gritical Engineering sales growth despite continued
New Construction Power weakness

» Hydronic Engineering margin recovery delivered

» Bimba integration progressing well

» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12%

» Further reduction of global pension liabilities

» 3% increase in the full year dividend recommended

» Roy Twite to succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive

Al figures are slated on an adjusted basis excluding she effect of adjusting items in the income statement, For other
statutory measures see Consofidated Income Statement on page 84.

' On an organic basis, after adjusting o1 the impact of disposals and acquisitions and movements in exchange rates,
sea Section 2.1.1 on pags 93.

< Operating Cash FHlow before adjusting items as described in the commentary to the cash flow statement on page 21.

" Adjusted measures are defined in Section 2.1.7 on page 93.
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Turn to page 06

Ml eco-SyStem

5
=
E]
-]
a
£
q
=
o
3

malaay DlBarens

B0uBLIaACE) B1RIOton |

A_._!“-FEEI--

SieWREIS [eoueUL |



02 M ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Chairman’s statement

2018 - another year of

Throughout the year the Board has had the
opportunity to spend time with our employees on
a number of occasiens. In April | participated in our
senior management conference. This is an annual
event over 2-3 days inveiving 300 of our business
leaders from across the Group and is a valuable
opportunity to discuss all aspects of the business
with them, Later in the vear we also held our Octeber
Board meeting at Bimba’s University Park facility
near Chicago. Although Bimba joined the Group only
in January, the team there has embracad our
continuous improvement culture with great
enthusiasm and our Lean processes are already
becoming apparent throughout the business.

Tha Board also took the opporfunity to visit IM) CCI
RSM in California. During our visit we toured the site
and learned about the continuous impravements
being made acrgss the business as well as its plans
to expand the product offering to gain market share.
We were also shown remote inspection technologies
provided by IMi and Increasingly aouepted by
cUstomers as a means by which the preduct
abproval process can be made even more efficient
by reducing unnecessary site visits by engingers.

Continuous improvement now
firmly established

As we enter the final year of our five year pian it is
an appropriate time to reflect upon the significant
progress that has been made to date and the work
that remains to be done,

Our cuiture has been transformed. IMI is now a
husiness that, as a matter of course, strives for
continuous improvement and recognises the
significant opportunities that flow from ever
ficreasing operational efficiency and productivity.
This mindset is fundamentally imporlant and,

now embedded throughout the Group, it will suppert
the delivery of our overall strategic goal — the
creation of long-term, sustainable value for our
shareholders, employees and other stakeholders.

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

During the year we improved our health and safety
performance in a number of areas. The total number
of LTAs (lost time accidents) redured mere than 20%
and following the taunch of a targeted campaign,
the Group delivered a reduction in hand injuries

in the year of over 40%.

The Chief Executive's revigw on page 12 and the
operafional reviews on pages 28 to 33 provide more

Board and Governance

detalls on the recent progress made in each of the During the year two new non-executive directors
Group's thrge divisions. Whilst some of the markets joined. bringing considerable and relevant

we serve did offer some support (0 our performance | experience as well as fresh perspectives to the
auring the year, elsewhere we did face a number of IM} Board. Thomas Thune Andersen joined the

ecanamic and iading chaflenges. Strengthening cur Board on 1 July 2018 and afso hecame a member
business, and in particular our market compatiiveness, | of the Nominations and Femuneration Committaes.
to make the Group more resflient regardiess of marke! | Thomas has extensive knoviedge and experience

conditions, continues to be a key priority. in someg of the key sectors we operate in, including

In relation to geopolitical uncertainty, we have oil, energy and criticai infrastructure, Katie Jackson

developed a number of Brexit related contingency also joined the Board on 1 July 2018 and became

plans, including building long 'ead-time inventories | @ Member of the Nominations and Remuneration

to mitigale supply chaln interruptions in the evenl Committees. Katie has deep knowledge of the

of increased border controls, or delays In obtaining | international Ol & Gas market, and significant

clearance to and from the UK. corporate finance and business development
experience. Further information aboul Thomas

Our peaple and culture and Katig, and the other members of the Board,

Our people around the world remain key to our is set out on page 52 to 53.

success and they have contributed significantly We acknowledge the infreduction of the 2018

to the progress we have made during the year. UK Corporate Governance Code and during the

On behalf of the Board, | would like 1o thark all year we took appropriate steps to prepare for

of our employees for their continued hard work compliance with the new requirements which

ang commitmment. came into effect rom 1 January 2019,




In November 2018, we announced the
appeintment of Birgit Nargaard as non-executive
director with responsibility for workforce
engagement, This important role, which is in
line with the revised Code's recommendations,
will build on the various mechanisms we
already operate 1o ensure we continue to
engage effectively with our people.

We have also revised our corporate governance
framework and the business cycles for the Board
and its committees to reflect the 2018 Code and

appropriale training has baen provided to 1he Board.

Chief Executive succession

Mark Selway will be stepping down as Chief
Executive at the Annual General Meeting in May
and retiring from the Board on 31 July 2019,
He will ke succeeded by Roy Twite, currently
Divisional Managing Director of IMI Critical
Engineering.

Under Mark's leadership IMI's market position
has been significantly enhanced. The Group's
infrastructure has been madernised, its
operational performance radically improved
and its custemer offering refreshed, As a result,
IM! is now a much more robust and sustainable
husiness. On behaif of the Board | would like

to thank Mark for his {eadership, drive and
commitment. He has made a significant
contribution to the Greup, and while fuily
respecting his decision 1o return home lo retire,
we are very sorry o see him go. We wish him
well in his retirement back in Australia.

Roy was appointed following a comprehensive
global search precess that included both internal
and external candidates. Roy jeined IMtin 1988
and has been a member of the Board since
2007, He has held senior management reles

in all parts of the Group including President

of IMI Hydronic Engineering, President of IMI

Precision Engineering and, since 2011, Divisional
Managing Director of IMI Critical Engineering.
The Board is delighted to appoint Roy as IMI's
next Chief Executive. He is a strong and
experienced successer who has been pivetal

to the Group’s continued success, He has
extensive cperational experience, deep
knowledge of our core markets and

outstanding leadership qualities.

Dividend

Reftecting the continued confidence in the
Group's prospects, the Board is recommending
an increase in the final dividend of 3% to 26.0p
(2017: 25.2p) making a total dividend for the
year of 40.6p, an increase of 3% over last
year's 39.4p.
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Group overview

n
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IM

Critical Engineering

IMI Critical Engineering is a world-leading
provider of critical flow control solutions
that enable vital energy and process
industries to operate safely, cleanly.
refiably and mare efficiently.

>| I tMI Critical Engineering operational review
Turnto page 28

IMI

Precision Engineering

IMI Precision Engineering specialises
in developing motion and fluid control
technologles for applications where
precision, speed and refiability

are essential.

I> | M} Precision Engineering operational review
Turn toy paye 30

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

IMI Hydronic Engineering is a leading

global supplier of products for hydronic
distribution systems which deliver optimal and
energy efficient heating and cooling systems to
the residential and commercial buflding sectors.

|> l Ml Hydronic Engineening operational review
Torsi to page §2
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Revenue

£682m

Adiusted operating profit

£88.3m

Numbrer of employees

3,200

£916m _

£153.2m

6,100

£309m

Adjusted operating profit

£52.0m

Number of employces

1,800
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/@ IMI’s global footprint

MR wwarmiple, com: abaut-irmisgur-givesions imi-at-a-glance asox

Key brands

IMI Bopp & Reuther, IMI CCI,

MI Fluid Kinetics, IMI InterAtiva,
MINH, IM} Orton, IMI Remosa,
IMISTI, IMI TH Jansen, IME Truflo
Manne, IM! Truflo Rona, IMI Truflo
ltaly, IMEZ&J, IMi Zikesch

Main markets

Cil & Gas, Fossti Power, Nuclear
Power, Petrochemical, Iron & Steel,
Desalination and Process Industries

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Repubiic,
Germany, India, taly, Japan, South
Karea, Sweden, Switzerland, UK

and USA

Key brands
IMI Nergren, IMI Buschjost, IMi FAS,
IMI Herion, IMI Maxseai, Bimba

Main markets

Commercial Vehicie, Enargy, Food
and Beverage, Industrial Automation,
Life Sciences and Rail

Major operational locations
Brazil, China, Czech Republic,
Germany, India, Mexico, Switzerland,
UK and USA

Key brands
IM! Flow Design, IMI Heimeier,
I Pneumatex, IMI TA

Main markets

Waler based healing and cooling
systems for commercial buildings,
and temperature control for
residential buildings

Major operational locations

Germany, Poland, Slovenia, Sweden,
Switzerland and USA

©

Power

Oil& Gas

o

Petrochemical

Al
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Actuation

We are the world leading
supplier of engineered to
order turbine bypass valves
for cnitical applications in
conventional and nuclear
power plants — helping to
provide the safest. most
reliable and efficient power
generation,

2018 revenue: £266m

®

industrial Automation

We supply anti-surge vale
and actuator systems 1o
the world's largest LNG
compression facilities.

Our systems are capable
of ultra-tast response 1o
maximise LNG production
whike protecting the
COMpressor,

2018 revenue: £224m

e

Commercial Vehicle

Wa design and manufacture
integrated flow control systems
far criticat appiications in Huid
Catalytic Cracking. We also
supply bespoke valves inta the
sthylene, polypropylane and
delayed coking production
processes.

2018 revenue: £117m

Oil & Gas

We focus on the design

and production of complete
actuation systems to operate
industrial valves for the maost
demanding applications and
processes in terms of forces,
speed and accuracy ang
harsh envircnments.

2018 revenue: £25m

e

Life Sciences

We supply high performance
products including valves,
valve islands, prepertional and
pressiire monitering controls
and alr preparation products,
as well as a comprehensive
range of pneumatic actuators.

2018 revenue: £525m

Balancing & Control

We dasign and manufacture
a range of cah chassis

and powerirain salutiors
which deliver fuel efficiency,
emissions reduction and
faster assembly times for the
world's leading commercial
vehicle manufacturers,

2018 revenue: £196m

Thermostatic Control

We offer a comprehensive
range of products which deliver
precision control in even

the harshest environments,
including stainless steel

valves and regulators. nuctear
class valves and emergency
shutdown controls.

2018 revenue: £77m

®

Pressurisation

We supply precision flow
contred solutions used in
medical devices, diagnostic
equipment and bictech and
analytical instruments. Our
products help to reduce

the size of equipment,

while enhancing accuracy,
throughput ang fluid control
performance.

2018 revenue: £77m

0

Water Quality

Qur hydronic balancing and
control solutiens enable
buildings to keep comiort at
the right level while improving
HVACG efficiency by up to 30%.
Our expertise covers constant
and variable flow and both
static and dynamic balancing.

2013 revenue: £151m

We deslgn and manifacture
thermestatic control systems
which guarantee direct or
automatic contro! of radiators
and underfloor heating
systems to perfectly control

ndividual room temperaturas.

2018 revenue: £98m

Reliahle pressurisation is a basic
requirement for a trouble-free
cperalion of heating, cooling
and solar systems. Qur robust
range of pressure maintenance
systems with compressors or
pumps and expansion vessels
maintains the right pressure in
the systemn at all times.

2018 revenue: £32m

Tha single most important
component in any hydronic
system is the water itself. When
compromised, the effects can
be felt throughout the system.
Qur dirt and air separators

and pressure step degassers
protect the instaliation

by keeping water free of
microbubbles and sludge.,

2018 revenue; £10m
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100DMT choke valve

Offshore platform
We design and provide valves
for the most critical applications
includirg offshore.

Control
vatves

Specialist
ball valyes

Gogale
valves [

Refinery

We keep the world moving
from petrol to diesel and jet
fuel, our specialisi valves
refine crude oil to provide

a wide range of products.

conventional
confrol vaives

Specafist
triple cccentric
butterfly valves

:Tﬁ‘[

Ind UStrl a_l MSOLine™ actuator
Automation .

We develop solutions for our -
customers in the machinery, ety
tood and beverage; printing; and

factory automation inclustries, Eecelon® /

preparat

Bimba
lateltisense




Data centres Medical MICROSOL MS-E
We ensure stable pressure and Pressurisation devices and

clean water for high cooling intensity instrumentation
applications, preventing premature

We help CEMs increase

eqguipment failure and costly downtime. feronmance of ther
systemns, enabling cutting
Dirt separation o edge devices that improve

Balavcing valves health and the environment.

Cadent 3 puinp

Bimba Versagrip™
Solenoid pinch valve

Hospitals

Our products help to deliver
quality, energy-efficient HVAC
systems, which ensure optimal
patient comfort.

Differcatial
pressure
controls 3

Thermosatic
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Triple eccentric
butterfly valves

LNG

We provide the controf and
safety systems to ensure
safe delivery of liguefied
natural gas to power cities
across the world,

Isolation
Lrypgenc
ball vaives

Auti-surge valves

Family house
We provide a comprehensive

rangs of thermostalic control
products, ensuring optimal

temperature control and
energy efficiency.

THermostatic
controfs

tiderfivor

Heating

How control

manifolas

Radiator vaives %
with automatic

Cc

soh
redu

Tr
44

LAl

Multipurpose
commercial building
Qur balancing and control selutions
cambine highly precise mechanical valvas
and digital actuation allowing complete fdependent
electronic integration and greater efficiency wedulating

Pressure

in complex heating and cooling systems. control
Combincd A,
contral &
bafancing , .
Digital
actudation




Engineering
GREAT the
Ml Way

Combined cycle
power plant

Products designed to cope with high
pressure and lemperature differences

in the most critical applications ensures
pawer is avallable when neaded.

nercial Vehicle

2 of cab, chassis and powertrain
deliver fuel efficiency, emissions
and faster assembly tmes,

Engine controf

Turbine bypass
wilti-valve block

vaives J
3

N

Desuperficaters
_ E—_-

Rail AMT compressed
dair dryer

We offer customised solutions for
all types cf rail applications.

Pantpgraph
control systems boor control
valve systewms
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IMI Critical Enginecring are
renowned for design and
menufeeture of specialist
products in offshore applcations.
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Chief Executive’s review

An increasingly

robust portfolio

Mark Selway
Chief Executive

Anpual Report and Accounts 2018

- The acquisition of Bimba for a total consideration

Overview

It is pleasing to report the continuation of the
progress achieved in the first haf of 2018,

Our strategic plan to drive sustainable long-term
growth continues to make a real difference across
all parts of the Group. Our new product pipeling

is developing well, our manufaciuring operations
have further improved and the new systems

and processes being embedded throughott

the business are delivering gains in efficiency

and competitiveness.

Integration of Bimba Manufacturing
Company (‘Bimba’)

of £138m {US$158m) was completed on

31 January 2018, The transaction has increased
our US revenues while extending IMI Precision
Engineering's presence in its core Industrial
Automation segment. Good progress has been
made with the integration of Bimba into Precisien
Engineering’s North American operations. We have
also accelerated some of our plans for Bimba

to imprave its operations and IT infrastructure

in readiness for tha opportunities for growth

and margin improyvement.

Trading environment

Trading conditions across our three divisions
continued to be mixed throughout 2018 with
growth in IM! Precision Engineering's end
markets offsetting declines in New Construstion
Fossil Power and Energy markets in IM)
Critical Engineering.

For IMI Critical Engineering, the Petrachemical
market again produced some encouraging
opportunities which refiect the division's success
at extending its reach into a broader range of
applications. The improving outlook in some
parts of the Oil & Gas sector again contrasted
with the challenging cutlock for coal-fired

power generation.

In IMI Precision Engineering, alt of the division’s
verticals and regians showed further good
proyress in the year. This was achieved daspite
tougher comparators and increased market
valatility, particutarly in Industriat Automation,
through the latier part of 2018.

Within IM! Hydronic Engineering where European
construction represents over /9% of the division.
markets werg marginally stronger than the
previous year. Although less significant for the
division overall, the North America and China
construction markets also continued to grow.

White we have a broad international manufacturing
footprint and less than 5% of sales In the UK,

it would be remiss not to mention the potential
impact of Brexit on the Group's eperating
performance, Despite prevailing uncertainty,

the Group has developed a number of Brexit
refated contingency plans, including & programme
of building long lead-time inventories o support
customers in the event of increased border
controls or delays in getting clearance to and !
from the UK. While we hape that these increased
inventories will not be required, it is essential that
we do as much as we can to minimise potentiat
supply ¢hain disruption and ensure our customer
delivery commitments are met.

Results overview

2018 was anether year of important progress for
IMI. A now well-established culture of continuous
improvement, both within our operations and in our
product offering, further enhances our competitive
position, irrespective of the market environment.

Adjusted Group revanues were 9% higher at
£1,907m (2017: £1,7517m). Excluding adverse
foreign exchange and the acquisition of Bimba,
Group revenues on an organic basis were 5%
higher when compared to the prior year. Adjusted
segmental operating profit was 11% higher at
£266m (2017: £241m). Excluding the impact of
adverse foreign exchange and Bimba, segmental




Ambition:
Dotible
operating profits

1 Mark Selway on atour al the
manufacturing site opening «

ngy
i - Dvisional

Andrew Taylor - Regronal Managing ,.
Director APAC.,
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operating profits were 9% higher on an organic
basis. The Group’s operating margin was
14.0% against 13.8% in 2017 and adjusted
earnings per share were 12% higher at 73.2p
{(2017:65.3p).

Adjusted operating cash flow of £222m (2017:
£218m) followed a strong performance iast year
and reflected higher working capital fo support
growth in Precision Engineering and
comparatively higher advanced payments
received by Critical Engineering in 2017.

Both debtor and inventory days showed modest
improvement while creditors reflected the impact
of lower pre-payments in Critical Enginsering.
Net Debt of £405m {2017: £265m) reflected

payment of the consideration for Bimba and
resulted in a Net Debt to adjusted EBITDA ratio
of 1.3x against 0.9x at the end of 2017,

We continue to be proactive in our efforts to
manage the Group's pension Kabilities and in
20138 sucocessfully completed the transfer of a
further £409m of liabilities to insurance partners.
This brings the total value of pension schemes
removed from our balance sheet over the last
two years to £838m. The UK schemes remain

in surplus and the overseas deficit remained
constant at £80m In the year.

Good strategic progress

Qur strategic plan to drive long-term sustainable
growth is making a real difference across all
parts of the Group. Significantly improved
operationai performance, new systems and
processes that are helping us operate more
efficiently and a new product pipeline all
continue o enhance our competilive position.
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1 IMI's Board visits the Bimba Universily Park
site in llinois.

2 Lamp lighting at the Precision Engincering's
new india manufacturing site opening.

3 The IMi Board receive a safety briefing
ahead of a tour of IMi CCI RSM in Cahfornia

4 Mark Selway greets employees al the india
site opening.
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Executive Committee

Mark Selway Daniel Shook Roy Twite Massimo Grassi Phil Clittan Paui Roberts Geoff Tranfield John Q'Shea
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New product pipeline b Lam very proud of what the team at IMI has

Improving our operational |

performance For each division largeted New Product | delivered and | would like 10 thank our employees
During 2018 each cf our divisions further Development initiatives remain a key focus. " for their hard work, commitment and passion.
enhanced their operational performance. We launched a significant number of new | They have contributed significantly to the

At the year-end the Group's average Lean score products during 2018 covering a range of progress we have made in recent years.
increased to 75% compared to 71% at the same | applications. Al three divisions have ambitious | am confidert that the solid foundations put
point in 2017. Scrap rates, on-time-delivery and | plans to continue their focused product in place in recent years position the Group
inventory management all improved and the development strategies in 2019 and beyond. well for the future and | would like to wish all
benafits were evident in the Group’s results our employees around the world much success.

By increasingly combining New Product

in the year. Most importantly, this improved DA ‘ o
y P Y P Development inftiatives with Value Engineering

performance provides an‘irlnportant foundation processes, we have confinued o expand our Qutlook

for our 'ncreased competitiveness and addressablle markets and are competing in In the first half of 2019 we expect organic

reSpONSiveness 10 Customers. . . ;

segments that were not previously accessivle, revenues 1o be lower than the same period

Positioning our busihesses in 2018 due to the phasing of Critical

for growth Business development Engineering's order book and slowing market

In the past four years much has been done Alongside our organic growth initiatives, targeted demand in the Industrial Autormation sector in

to simplify the way our businesses operate ! acquisitions that meet our clearly defined and Precision Engineering. Margins are expected

and make them more efficient. disciplined criteria continue LG represent & Core | o he broadly similar, supported by our operational
. . part of our strategy. We seek opportunities that initiatives and an improved performance from

We have invested heavily in new systems are culturally aligned and have the potential to Hydrenic Engineering. Results for the full year

dnd processes which are essential i the Group deliver sustainable long-term profitable growth. will also reflect e banefits of restructuring

I5 to defiver fong-term sustainable growth. As was the case with the acquisition of Bimba ard our normal second-half bias

An increasing number of our businesses in January 2018, we aim to engage early with '

are upgrading their core IT systems to modern potential partners with the ambition of securing

divisional platforms that automatically manage preferred buyer status ahaad of any formal

business precesses to deliver consistent, process being started.

accurate data. As a result, we have better visibility

across the production process and we are able Our people

to manage our day-to-day operations more cost
and time effectively and make our product and
service offering more competitive.

This is my final IMI Chigf Executive’s review.
Choosing to leave IMI has been a tough
decision, but the time is now right to hand
Across all of our operations we have embedded over to & successer to centinue the Group’s

disciplined and efficient processes, including development. Roy will do a great job leading
New Product Development and Value Engineering. the business through its next phase of
These consistent processes support our development and growth.

continuous improvement culture and help
ensure that our investments ultimately deliver
an earlier and greater return.
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ur strategic model
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1 Collaboration between divisk:

ensures bast practice shared
across dll fuhctions.

2 World-ciass anygineering in IMi
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heliped transform UM} Critical
Engineering's competitivensass.
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Maintaining financial discipline
As we execute our strategy to deliver accelerated
growth, we continue to maintain financial
discipline. Capital is allocated to drive organic
growth, maintain a progressive dividend policy
in line with earnings and to fund acquisitions.
Whilst retaining flexibility to develop IM{'s full
notential, we continue to focus on maintaining
an efficient balance sheet and, in the event of
us having cash in excess of the Group's current
needs, we will return this excess capital te
shareholders. Through the life of our five year
plan we will work to maintain net debt to EBITDA
of no more than two timas through the cycle.

Net debt to adjusted EBITDA
2017 0.9x 2018 1.3x

Working together as cne
simplified IMI

To harness the Group's full potential we remain
determined to maximise the oppertunity that
our scale provides us by acting as one IMI.
Esfablishing core processes has provided

a strong platferm that underping a framework
for creating consistent Group—wide standards
and behaviours, The impact goes far beyond

manufacturing with industry best practice

now consistently adopted across back-office
functions. The Group intranet is a catalyst for
knowledge and best practice transfer and the
conferences and Leadership Programmes help
build a strong and collaborative environment
across the whole of 1M1,

Investing in Group-wide IT and
infrastructure

Since 2014 we have significantly enhanced

our IT enabled business capabilities. We are
standardising the ERP systems. business
processes and reporting In our Divisions to
provide us with access 1o accurate and consistent
data. As a result, we have better visibility across
the preduction environment, can manage our
day-to-day operations more efficiently and

make our product and service cfferings

more competitive,

IMI Hydrenic Engineering rolled out new systems
across its sales and service offices in Spain, [taly,
Switzeriand, Austria, Czech Republic, Australia
and the Netherlands and alsc installed a new
system at its plant in Fullinsdorf in Switzerland.
Today 50% of the division's plants and over
40% of its sales and service offices share

a common IT systern.

Over the past three years. the Group has also
established a solid foundation of IT security
capabilities and controls across the busingss.
This investment wil} continue to identify and
remediate new and emerging threats threugh

a 24/7 Security Operations Centre. The Group
policies include a reguirement that all businesses
maintain a robust backup of all critical operating
data so business continuity can be maintained
even in the event of a system failure,

The delivery of standardised ERP solutions in each
of our divisions continues to be a high priority in
terms of major systems investment. In iMI Critical
Engireering, implementations have taken place in
China, Germany, Switzerland and faly. IMI Hydronic
Engineering has rolled out new systems in its
Swiss factory and its sales offices in Switzerland,
Austria, Netherfands, Czech Republic, Spain and

~ ltaly. IMi Precision Engineering has finalised ERP

solutions at its core US sites and will commence
ERP impiementaticns in Asia during 2019,

[T infrastructure investment extends far beyend
mandtacturing. In Engineering and New Product
Development, IMI Precision Engineering's

new AutoDesk capability allows engineers to
collaporate on product design and specification
regardress of where they are located, enhancing
our service through driving out complexity,

This glchalisation of the divisicn's design capability
generates several benefits including making the
design process more efficient and cost-effective.
Most importantly, it also makes il easier {0 develop
the optimal product for a specific market and
localise the manufacturing process accerdingly.

Inngvative marketing campaigns and digital
communication 1ools in both I Precision
Engineering and IMI Hydrenic Engineering are
improving the quality of contact we have with
our customers and allowing them better access o
our products and services, much more efficiently,
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Strategic growth
priorities .
Our strategic plan to

accelerate growth is focused.
on four key grthh p ol

A

Capitalising on Improving
significant organic operational
growth opportunities performance
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Increasing investment
in New Product
Development

Al ihree divisions aie
micreasinaly delivesing o

oy proratse 1o inlrodoce grest
new pioducts and solubions fu
ot cusiomers, imore gibhohly
aricd irore effectively tharn

ever before,
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Expanding our
addressable markets
through targeted
acquisitions

Boyond oul extsting bosiicus
portfoio, we have the porenii
teenipand thwough the careful
coacutton of value enhancinog
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Strategic growth priorities

Capitalising on
significant growth

opportunities B

New facility - Japan

Over the last four years IMI Critical Engineering has
successtully repositiored its business. in particular,
its global footprint has been realigned and today

the division has world-class manufacturing facilities
in the heari of the industry’s fastest growing
markets. Building on the success of its new facilities
in China, India and South Korea, in 2018 the division
committed to relocating its existing factory in West
Kobe, Japan to a new purpose-built facility near
Kobe Airport. Aside from offering a much more
efficient layout, the new plant will focus on the
design and manufacture of large valves and
hydraulic actuating systems — products that the
existing facility is not equipped to manufacture.
This investment will enhance M Critical
Engineering's offering in the attractive
Petrochemical market in Japan.

Strengthening our position in
growing markets

IMI Precision Engineering is continuing to
strengthen its presence in growth markets arpund
the world. During 20138 the division completed
the relocation of its plant in Noida near New Deihi
to a new purpose-built facility, nearby. The new
facility, which is three times the size of the old
plant provides a core low cost manufacturing

and engineering capability to Precision
Engineering’s, already competitive Asian
operations, Gur New Dethi operations include sales
and custorner service, production, distribution and
a technicai centre, and provides increased
production capacity {o meet the growing demand
for IMI Precision products in the Indian market.

Capitalising on growing
market demand

The glebal underflocr heating market is expected
to grow at a compound annual grovah rate of
nearly 5% over the next five years, driven by

a number of factors including increasing legistation
aimed at reducing carbon emissions. (M| Hydronic
Engineering’s praduct portfolic includes a range
of products that control underfloor heating
systems, including manifolds which incorperate
the division's Automatic Flow Control {'AFC')
technology. This unique AFC technoiogy ensures
that the correct fiow rates of water are delivered
to each room thereby ensuring precise
temperature control, In the last 12 months the
division has won a number of significant contracts
lo supply its undertloor heating products and
technology to both new build and refurbishment
projects acress Europe. In particular a number
of municinal and social housing authorities across
central Europe, including Austria & Germany,
have installed IMI Hydrenic Engineering's AFC
technology solution to help save energy across
their bufiding stock.
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1 Precision Engineering's new dndian
manufacturing facility in Noida, India,

2 IMI Critical Engincenng's new Lean factary
nr Japan will suppert regional growth

3 Hydronic Engincering's leading underlloor
heating manifold, Dynacon Echipse, not enly
helps to save energy in homes, buts also
rasy to install.

4 Cardbaard engineering (n action, wilh a
seale replics of Precision Engmeenng’s
newy Indhan manufacturing faciity.

5 Hydronie Engineering’s underfloor heating

sulutions are providing cemfort to home
myrers and lenants across Contral Europe,
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Strategic growth priorities

Improving operational

performance

Better operational
performance enhances
customer offering

Across the Group we have continued to optimise the
use of Obeya, the visual tool which facilitates project
management by bringing 1ogether multiple work
streams and encouraging coilanorative working
practices, The IMi Remosa team in italy is now using
QObevya to manage ils aftermarket business more
effectively. In particuiar, current and future field
service workload, togather with field engineering
capahility and availability, is now clearly mapped to
ensure that the appropriate engineering service is
available when required. As a result, the time taken
to identify and match the appropriate service
engineer 1o each job has reduced by 62% and
$ervice engineers, spares and tools are more
effectively utilised.

74%

Lean score up 50%
from first assessment

TeRib ey F oot L 0
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Enhancing Bimba's
operational performance

We completed the acquisition of Bimba in
January and shortly thereafter launched a Lean
implementation programme to begin the process
of transtorming the cperational performangce
across Bimba's eight sites. The first assessment
process started in March where Bimba's
operations achieved a 19% Lean score. At the
end of 2018, this score had improved significantly
to 27%. In particular the business’ accidant
rates hiave failen fiy 86% and mare generally a
continuous improvement cutiure is now becoming
embedded across the Bimba business. Bimba's
University Park site underwent an accelerated
transformation and improved their assessment
scare from 20% to 44% in under 10 months.

75%

Lean score up 42%
from first assessment

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Embedding ihe voice of the
customer in our operational
processes

1M1 Hydronic Engineering's facilities in Qlkusz
Poland, and Brezice, Slovenia were two of the
first plants in the Group to achieve werld-class
operational benchmark performance. The division’s
efiective appiication of Lean within its production
facilities is now being extended across its sales
offices and distribution hubs 1o ensure that
custorner reguirements are consistently delivered.
Additionally, the IMI Hydronic Engineering senior
operaticns team now meet reguiarly with safes
gams and customers out in the field, to better
ungerstand their needs and collaborate on projects

! 1o address any customer issues or opportunities

which might arise. One such project focussed
an improving our quaiity processes fo drive
down average response times and has reduced
unresolved complaints by 85% in the final
guarter of 2(118.

78%

Lean score up 41%
from first assessment



1 Individual valve quality check at Hydrohic
Engineenng’s plant i Ljung, Sweden.

2 IMI Remosa's world-class Hydraulic Power
Control Units enablo remote monitoring
to ensure optimised plant perfaormance
for our customers.

3 Bimba's IntelliSense is an industey
4.0 preduct that integrates directly into
preumatic systems, enabling predictive
intelligence.

4 Five Hydrenic Engineering sites now have
a Lean score ahave 707 .

5 IMI Rernosa has produced leaner designs
enabling their products to delwer significant
reliability and operational improvements,
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Strategic growth prlontles

Increasing

investment

In New Product
Development
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Value Engineering delivering
competitive advantage

Value Engineering is a core component of the
division's New Product Development activities and,
over the last two years, our enhanced skilis and
capability in this area have significantly improved
our competitiveness. Despite challenging market
conditions, since 2016 IMI Critical Engineering has
won nearly hall a billion pounds of new contracts
through the application of Value Engineering tools
and processes. On average, a 15% cost reduction
for our customers has been delivered. Included in
the division’s 2018 contract wins was an order for
IMI Remosa fo provide a package of products for
installation in a Spanish oil refinery which was
being refurbished. The product package included
control syslems, actuators and slide valves, which
operate together in extreme temperatures of up to
880°C. These products control and shut dowr the
flow of liquids and gases during the critical “crude
oil 10 liquid fuels” conversion process. Using Value
Engineering, IMI Remosa was able to re-develop
its products which significantly reduced welding
and other manufacturing costs and created

a compelling solution for the customer at a
competitive price.

Industry 4.0 at the centre of
New Product Development

Digitisaticn is at the centre of IMI Precision
Engineering's New Product Development
process where investment is being focused

on product cantrol and data monitoring,

This in essence, allows our products to be
used as integrated components in a customers’
connected application.

During the year the division expanded its portiolio
of high performance, platform and bespoke
products which offer enhanced digital capability
and connectivity. New connected progucts include
a range of electric actuators which are expected
te launch in Spring 2019 at Hannover Messe.

the world leading technology trade fair.

Digital technology is providing a competitive
dynamic in tMI Precision’s commercial aclivities.
The division’s IMI Norgren Express™ App, which
enahles customers to find and buy products
quickly and easily using their smartphone,

is now available worldwide. This efficient and
effective digitised customer service, which
provides access to over half a miflion parts,

is enhancing cur custemer support offering.
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Maintaining our position at
the forefront of innovation

In the fast tive years IMI Hydronic Engineering
has launched numerous new products, many

ot which incorporate software that allows them
to be digitally enabled and connected to cther
components and systems, This software is
developed by the division’s dedicated in-house
Electronic Research & Development team which
focuses on creating solutions te satisfy customer
demand and maintain IMI Hydronic Engineering’s
teading position at the forefront of innovation.
During the year the division continued to expand
its digital product portfolic. In December we
extended our existing market teading TA-Slider
actuator range to include a number of new
products suitable for smaller apphcations such
as ceiling cooling. These new actuators, which
open and close vaives to controi the flow of
water in HVAG systems, connect to building
management systems and gather large amounts
of data ultimately used to drive energy and

cost efficiencies.




1 Discipling in design with operator input
ENSUres successiy, Competitive Rroducts,
2IM(FAS aunched the ney, Microsol M5-g
althe Meciic 2018 fair in Dusseldor,
3IM Critical's strong "eRUtation means
Customers wory with aur businessey
1o develop froducts that improve
L processes.
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Strategic growth priorities

Expanding our
addressable markets
through targeted acquisitions

Our acquisition strategies for the divisions are:

iMI Critical Engineering

Within IMi Critical Engineering, focus remains on
extending the division's reach into new, adjacent
markets and applications to capture a greater share
of customer spend. Such an expansicn might
include severe and semi-severe applications and
could alse involve extending our geographical
footprint. IMi Critical Engineering's capabilities in
Vaiue Engineering and New Product Development
would support value creation in any completed
acquisition. Many of the patential acquisitions in
this segment are small and mid-sized businesses
with a specific market niche and would fit well into
the iMi global network and culture.

IMI Precision Engineering

As IMI's largest division, IM| Precision Engineering is
also the division that offers the greatest potential for
a more significant acquisition. A number of potential
partners in the market are of a farger size and
match our criteria of cuttural fit and combination
logic. Given the size of the market and IMI's strength
of process and market expertise, we are confident
in our ability to successfully deliver value from an
acquisition in this industry. The advancement of
the Bimba integration in 2018 provides further
confidence of the significant potential achievable
through consolidation in this market,

This feedback from one of our customers attests
10 the success of the acquisition and integration
of Bimba:

“The acquisition of Bimba by IMI ple brings
together two of the most recognised brands
in the industry. Bimba s very well knoun as
a leader in actuators with extensive product
options and a willingness to create unigue
solutions for ever one customer. Combining
the Bimba and IMT brands solidifies IMI as

a market leader in the pneumatics industy
ay well as in eleetric and hydraulic. This
acquisition has put the industry on notice that
IMI is serious about being a solution provider
for pneumatic and overall motion products
on a global level.”

Brendon Connelly
Air Inc, US industrial distributor

Annual Report and Accounts 218
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iMi Hydronic Engineering

For IMI Hydronic Engineering, we believe that

an effective way to expand the business in

new gecgraphies is to acquire businesses in
our desired locations that have similar strengths
to those we enjoy in our own, core regions.
Those target businesses tend to be smailer,
often privately-ownad enterprises, The most likely

| vaiue to be generated from such a combination

would be derived from the synergies available
by shating complementary routes to market
and product ranges,




LORANPOIY]

1 The Bimba brand holds strang preminence
among the North American maraet for
Industnal Automation,

2 Parts are chiecked tor gquality as they pass
through production al Bumba's Universily
Park. 1lhnois Tacility in the USA,

melney oibaleng

3 Manufaztured components undergo strict
guality centrol measures al Bimba,

4 Bimba's PreuMaoment™ pheamatic
actuaier s desikined 1o move heavy toade.,
5 A machinist checks pneamatic actualon

rod guides for dimensional conformince
at Bimba.
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Adjusted revenue

£682m

Adjusted operating profit

£88.3m

Key achievements

» Value Enginesring secured £180m of
new orders and underpinned excellent
order win-rates

» Further success in securing new
business in adiacent markeis

» Profit growth supported by successful
restructuring programme

» On-time and on-budget ERP
implementation across fourteen sites

» Increased average Lean score to 74%

'D: Find out Mmore” www.imi-critical.com

Performance

In 2018 the division continued to experience a
mixed trading environment in some of its most
important markets. Value Engineering and New
Product Development programmes continued
1o provide competitive levers which have enabled
us 1o outpace the market. Our continuing high
crder win-rate indicates that we have been
capturing more of the available projects than
our competitors.

Full year order intake at £652m (2017: £858m)
was flat on an organic basis and, as expected,
included a strong second half recovery. The
Value Engineering process, which is now fully
embedded within the division and used on all
New Gonstruction guotes of scale, supported the
delivery of £180m or 60% of New Construction
orders in the year.

Strong order growth from Water contrasted with
softer market conditions elsewhere. HIPPS orders
were also ahead of 2017, partially offsetting lower
Upstream and Midstream orders. Aflermarket
orders were 11% higher and reflected a 22%
Increase in upgrades and a 6% increase in parts,
when compared to the prior year, At the year-end,
the order book was £474m (2017: £510m) with
margins slightly higher, compared with 2017,

Revenues of £682m (2017 £648m) were 5%
higher on an adjusted basis and, after excluding
£6m of anverse foreign exchange and £3m from
disposals, were 7% higher cn an organic basis.
Segmentai operating profit of £88.3m (2017:
£84.0m) was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and
6% higher on an organic basis. Margins were flat
versus 2017, reflecting the division's ongoing work
to counter softer markets with the benefits from
restructuring and Value Engineering.

Lean scores improved significantly in the year
from 70% to 74% and our core customer
satisfaction metrics also showed continued
progress. The division progressed its long-term

faatprint reorganisation which has resufted

in the closure or transfer of thirteen lower growth
operations, These initiatives delivered £12m

of benefit in 2018 and have strengthened the

dwision's competitive position by realigning its

manufacturing feotorint with custemers in higher
growth markets.

In addition to the product and operational
investments, the division continued its programme
of ERP roll-out, This system is now fully emberded
in fourteen of IMI Gritical Engineering's sites.

Cutlook

Based on current order book phasing and the
comparatively large Petrochemical deliveries in
agarly 2018, we expect first half organic revenues
and profits to be lower when compared to 2018.
Resuits for the full year are expected to reflect

a more favourable second haif phasing and

the benefits from restructuring.



World-class engineering expertise,
innovative technologies and reliable
cost effective solutions are at the heart
of iMI Critical Engineering’s customer
offering. During the year these key
attributes were key enablers to the
division’s success at winning a diverse
range of significant contracts.

In September, IMI Truflo ltaly and iMI Critical
China won a new order o supply pneamatic
actuated ball valves for a petrochemical plant
in Datian, China, The plant, which is owned
by Hengli Petrochemical. processes purified
terephthalic acid CPTA™), which 1s used

to produce a range of maferials including
textiles and feod and drink packaging.

Previously Hengli Petrechemical had awarded
contracts to othar businesses within the

IMI Critical Engineering division including

IMI Z&J and M Remosa. Prior knowledge

and experience of IMI's technical engineering
capabitities. our products and customer service,

helped IMI Trufle Italy secure the Dalian contract.

Working closely with Invista. the company thal
licenses the PTA techinology to the Dalian plant.
IMI Truflo italy developed customised balt valves
capable of operaling with exiremely viscous and
corrosive fluids. The technical specification and
know-how associated with the product’s design
were originated at IMI Trufio Rona’s plant in
Belgium. and then transferred to iMI Truflo Italy.

Henglls plenit in Dalian., China,

is one of the world s fargest
Petrochemival operations.

procedures. Gre

products at lower costs

has increased our success
rates which protect product
margins.” :

Roy Twite
Divisional Managing Direct:

mawmay sibaens
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Performance

IM! Precision Engineering had another year of good
progress and delivered solid growth across all
verticals and regions. Revenues of £916m (2017
£791m) were 16% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after excluding £10m of adverse foreign exchange
and £88m from the Bimba acquisition, were 8%
higher on an organic basis.

Adiusted revenye

£916m

A Up 15%

alireg grivdad

£153.2m A

Adjunted

Strong Industrial Automation sales in the first hall

of 2018 siowed in the third guarter and declined
slightly in the fourth, leaving the full year up 2%
when compared ta 2017 Commerciat Vehicle related
sales of £196m reflected stronger than anticipated
markets and were 8% higher in the year, despite
£8m of contract completions. European Commercial
Vehicle revenues were slightly higher whilst North
America grew by 15%. Energy sales were 16%
higher than 2017 while Life Sciences and Rail
were 12% anid 14% higher, respectively.

Key achievements

» On-time and on-budget compigtion
of world-class facility in India

» Commercial Vehicle contract wins
support growth

» Improved underlying margin despite
COost pressures

» Increased average Lean score

to 75% Segmental operating profit of £153.2m (2017:

£133.5m} was 15% higher on an agjusted basis and,
after excluding £2m of adverse foreign exchange and
£7m from the Bimba acquisition, was 11% higher on
an arganic basis. Operating margins of 16.7% (2017:
16.9%j reflect the impact of the Bimba acquisition

in the year, Fxcluding Bimba, underlying marging
compared favourably to last year at 17.7%.

» Bimba integration progressing to plan

Good progress has been made with the integration
of Bimba into Precision Engineering’s North American
aperations. We have also accelerated some of our
plans for Bimba to improve its operations and IT
infrastructure, in readiness for the opportunities

for growth and margin improvement.

Operationally, the division continued to make solid
progress and the combination of Lean, New Product
Development and cost-reduction initiatives all
contributed to a good perfermance in the year.
We alse completed the relocation of eur Indian
operation to a new and larger facility in New Delhi
whictt was officially opened in October. This new
plarit expands Precision Engineering's low-cost,

[__,): Find out more: www.imi-precision.com

warld-class manufacturing and engineering
capabilities and enhances the divisien’s ability
1o serve our rapidly expanding market positions
acToss Asia.

The implementation of Lean throughout the division
has continued 1o make excelient progress. At the
end of 2018 Precision Engineering’s Lean score
increased to 75% compared to 70% af the end

of 2017.

Our focus on New Product Development to enhance
our market competitiveness gathered momentum.
The addition of integrated inteligence and
connectivily acress our product range remains

an important element of that strategy. In 2018,

new preducts were introduced across the entire
range and represented an increase in the vitality
index {sales from new products infroduced in the
last three years) to 12%.

In-sourcing actions already completed combined
with improved market conditions have helped
increase utilisation in the year. Localisation and
low-cost manufacturing transiers continug o
reduce lead times and improve customer service
and competitiveness.

I addition to product and operalional investments,
the division continues to implement its new ERP
system and now has a worid-class, fully integrated
[T system which is now planned to be rolled-out

in pur Asian operations.

Cutlook

The industrial outlook has become more volatile
with leading indicators pointing to centinued but
slower growth in the Industrial Autemation and
the Commercial Vehicle markets in 2019,

Based on current market conditions, we expect
first half organic revenues to be slightly higher,
with broadly flat margins, when compared to

the first half of 2018. The berefits of new product
faunches and operational improvements are
expected to support improved results for the full year.



The Rail industry is highly competitive.
Reliability, safety and cost control are vital -
and the need to maximise operational
efficigncy is a Key priority. IMI Precision
Engineering, with more than 30 years’
experience in the rail sector, provides a
range of products and technologies which
enable rolling stock to operate effectively.

in particular the division's innovative and
patented AMT air dryer system removes
moisture and impurities from compressed air
cnsuring that pneumatically operated systems,
such as doors. suspension and brakes operate
reliably and safety. The AMT system offers
market-ieading levels of performance

and reliahility.

During 2018 demand for the AMT system
continued to grow and IMI Precision Engineering
won a number of new orders including a
contract to supply Metro Trains Melbourne Pty
Ltd in Australia with 270 AMT air dry systems
and a major OFEM crder covering approximately
90 new Metro iraing from Biaoding in China.

A constantly improving produclion process
has been required to heip the division meet
ingreasing demand. efficiently, At lhe Leeds
fagility where the AMT system 1s manufactured,
a fully engaged team and their passion for
continuous improvement and Lean have
delivered the required improvements.

1 ead times have been reduced, inventory
management improved and standardisation
of the build process has reduced the
production cycle time.

Metro irains Methowrne Py Lid in

Adestredier il he supplicd with 270
AMYT ey elvyy systens,

“o018 was a year of further
success for IMIT Precision
Enginecring. Great new
products. improved
operational performance and
the addition of Bimiba were
all highlights in the year.”

Massimo Grassi
Donsonad Monagng T o
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Operational review

IMI

Hydronic Engineering

Down 1%

v

Adjusted revenue

£309m

Up 5% .

A

Adjusted operating profit

£52.0m

Key achievements

» Second half marging improved to
18.4% (2017: 15.9%)

» Buccessfully re-established
foundations for sustainable and
profitable growth

» New product launches continue
1o build sustainabile competitive
aclvantage

» Maintained excellent Lean score
of 78%

» On-time on-budget implementation
of divisional ERP

@ Find out mere, www imi-hydronic.com

Performance

iMi Hydronic Engineering's 2018 performance
was a fafe of two halves with the first haif
being focused on the actions necessary to
deliver significant improvements in the second
half of the year. The actions taken successully
recovered margins and consofidated the
division’s nosition as a market leader in

our core geographies and sectors.

Recovering substantially from the decline
experienced in the first half of the year, revenues
on an adjusted hasis of £309m (2017: £312m)
were 1% lower than 2017 and, after excluding
£3m of adverse foreign exchange, were flat on
an organic basis. The result was affected by
the actions taken ta return to satisfactary
marging, including the clesure of a loss-making
service business and the decision to aveid
product and project sales that generated
unacceptable marging.

Segmental operating profit of £52.0m (2017:
£49,7m) was 5% higher on an adjusted basis and,
after excluding £1m of acverse foreign exchange,
6% higher on an organic basis. Marging improved
to 16.8% (2017 15.9%) for the full year, with

a signfficant improvement in the second hali

to 18.4% (2017: 15.9%),

In our core territories market shares have remained
strong. Our key distributors, installers and specifiers
have responded positively to eur refreshed product
offering, constantly improving customer service
and ongoing commitment to customer support.

New product investment continued and contributed
£69m, or 22% of sales, in the year. The division also
maintained its excellent Lean score of 78%, with the
Polish plant once again achieving the highest Lean
score In the Group.

The roli-out of the new JD Edwards ERP system
continued throughout 2018 with the system now live
in three manufacturing businesses and thiteen of the
division's sales offices.

Outlook

Based on current market conditions organic revenue
fs expected to grow in the first half of 2019 with
margins siightly impraved when compared fo the
first half of last year. Results for the full year are
expected o refiect the benedils of our 2018
restructuring and our normal second half bias.



IMI Hydronic Engineering has a long and
suceessful track record of working closely
with designers and consultants to create
some of the most energy efficient and highly
successful commercial and residential
develepments in the world.

These credentials. including the division's work
on the Maracana Stadium in Brazil. which
hosted the 2014 Werld Cup finat, helped 1]
Hydrenic Engincering win centracts to design
and install temperature controd systems in
four of the World Cup 2018 stadia. The systems
installed at each stadium, including the

St. Petersburg Stadium which has a seating
capacity of 67,000, incorporated products from
IMI Pneumatex, [Mi TA and IMI Heimeier, three
aof the division’s market leading brands In
addition, through effective cross-divisional
collaboration with IMi Procision Engincering,
Norgen solenoid valves were afso incorporated
into each temperalure control system

Four Ruscian zois World Cup
stadivons were fiticd it Hydvenie

Eigencering produets te pioride
great teippervaticee conlial
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“Our in depth hydronic
experitence in many varied
projects around the world
and our ability to share the
knowledge across the
market and engine

teams, give

to pur custt?

mamay sbajeng
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Corporate

responsibility

Our ambition is for IMI to become a world-class
business - a truly great company that leads its
marketplace, that thinks long-term, that delivers
sustainable value to all stakeholders and operates
all aspects of its business in a responsible way.

To help ensure we achieve this ambition we focus on:

Creating a positive
and collaborative
place to work

Woe are comnmited to creating
apesiitve and coliahorative
worhplace where o cultire is
unitterpinned by core values and
Cehaviow s which promote fai
and ethical working practices.,

G
Tum to page 36

Attracting the best
people and developing
and engaging with
our employees

N

gt performance g dependent
o rioveiopmie, relaming and

reo uiting the best people with
the most relevant skills and
Eanperience whio gare ahligned

veith our values snd behaviours
and who can contribute to
delivering ouwr strategic ambitions.

{J
Turn to page 38



Prioritising health
and safety

The health and sadody of o
emplovees, cordractors ol
VISHONS 18 & pronaty pvicrily 101
thie Group. Quw combined Lean
avd Health coed Galsty sivhils
vunderpin Groue-wide rrgour
and contimuaus mprovement
throughout our operations.

J Turn to page 40

Members of IMI Remuosa’s team.
where IMIs investment foyother
with tulented employecs Do
ercated a world-class business,

Ensuring that
we minimise our
environmental impact

We have aresponaibiily b
Mitiimise e anviroosenidst
impact of our day-to-day
operations, Ow producets help
SuF clistotiers onoraie than
syslems and processoes safely,
cleanly and cost effectively,

(d
Tumn to page 42
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Creating a positive and
collaborative workplace

Do cotn b ot vecabpdines

foe e Do bobunnieany which

£ . ' . . Vi PR
Cibigy cxb el Ve AL IV T

We employ around 11,000 people around the world

Breakdown of employees by geography

Western Europe
51%

Evogna b
Markets .
1% 4

Eonh .
America
240

Breakdown of employees by division

IMi Cribical
Engineerng
28" -
IMI Precision
Engineering
55,
IMI Hyaronic
Engineerng

16%

UK Gender Pay Gap Summary for the year ending 5 April 2018*

UK Gender Pay Gap 2018 2017

32.6% 365%
217% 251%

Mean Gap
Median Gap

* As highlighted in the graphic above, we are a global business employing around 11,000
people around the werld, The above summary only covers our 1,046 UK employees.
Further information about cur UK gender pay gap, together with an explanation of
how these figures were calculaied, is provided on our website: www.miplc.com.

Culture

We have a clear purpose and a well-established
set of values and behaviours that help shape

our culture and outline the standards and conduct
expected of everyene across the Group. Our values
and behaviours are embedded in ali our internal
processes and procedures, including our

Code of Conduct, and they are integral to the

“The IMI'Way", which defines how we do husiness.

N

‘We deliver GREAT solutions for our
custowers tackling the world's most
demanding engineering challenges.”

Our mindsct xﬁ

‘Enaineering GREAT togetyer.”

S

Inteqrify Exccllence Innovation Cellaboration

Our purpose

Our values

Human rights, equality, diversity
and inclusion

We are committed to creating a diverse and
inclusive working enviranment where everyone
is treated fairly and with respect.

We are a signatory to the UN Global Compact
which establishes standards for human rights,
labour practices and anti-corruption, We also
deploy our own policies and procedures, which
set out how people should be treated and how
wa should conduct our business,




We believe it is essential that across all parts Ethical behaviour Community activities

of our business we empioy people from different |y ig egsertial that we run our business in an ethical | We recognise our responsibiity to the communties
backg.rounds and gultures 10 serve our global way with the highest standards of integrity. around the world in which we operate. We support
footprint and our diverse Custqmer hage. o ) a range of local charities and contribute funding

To ensure that our workplace is inclusive and As part of thelr induction, every employee who to organisations wha provide emergency support
That all employees anq wquers are Irealed fairly Joins the Group receives training in relathn 0 in erisis situations. During our annual ‘M| Way Day'
In an enviranment which is fre from any form the IMIWay and our Goae of Gonduct which our employees across the Group spend time

of d|sgr\m\nat|on! we ope(ate a Group-wide ‘ COVETS, amqngsl atner thmgs., gnt\-brlbery and supporting & local community charity ar project.
Diversity and Indlusion Policy. We mplement this | 8nti-corfuption. Refresher training on our Code These iniatives contribute ta the facal communily,
nelicy using & number of mechanisms including: of Conduct is provided regularly. and is reinforced help buslc rust and reinforce our team building

through our annual IMI Way Day, as well as

‘ o ) and collabarative approach.
face-to-face and on-line training sessions.

» the principles that underpin our Diversity and

Inclusion Policy are embedded in all our human 2
TESOUICE PIocesses and procedures which During the year, 7,000 employees undartook an Some of our IMI Way Day g
are regularly reviewed for both appropriateness onling training module in anti-bribery and around 2018 activities %
and competitiveness: 4,000 participated in a similar programme E
o . covering competition law. In addition, we have » Planting frees in SriCity, India to
» We run diversity awareness training a series of policies and procedures including | coincide with World Environment day.
programmss, including an E-leaming module | reuiar on-site legal and compliance reviews, | » Donating blood in India / raising
(translated into core Ianguages) Wmch | which are deswgned to help instil the highest ethical E funds for medical equipment for a
employess can access via our global intranet; | grandards and regulatory compliance. These are - care home for the elderly.
» when creating shortlists for internal and external . embedded in our risk assessment processes. i » Donating bicycles to a charity which
yacancies, we insist that external recruiters  further cetails of which are provided on page 46. | supports neglected and disadvantaged @
provide diverse shortlists: i We encourage all employees to report to their children, (Farmington, USA}). E’
» as part of our internal management ' manager any incident that is not in keeping with our » Developing an outdoor space to ;
performance process, each Divisional Managing | values and behaviours. We aperate a confidential be used by school children and their %
Director is set and further cascades chjectives independent hotline in 12 languages, which allows families (Birmingham, UK}. £
and local metrics aimed at improving diversity | anonymous reporting. Hotline activity Is reviewed
and inclusion in their division; each month by the Group's Ethics and Compliance
e as oty | i S SIS | promoting science,
local employees in our geographies 1o align with | »4g Al reponts are investigated theroughly and, ec ?Io 0gy and engineering P
our customers and the communities in which where required, appropriate action is taken to excellence 3
we work. As a result. we have a very small resolve issugs fully and quickly. During 2618, 49 During 2018 we entered into partnerships 5
and facused expatriate population; and cases were reported via the hotline which compared :’;:Lt'L’;’:te':‘:is:‘t‘h"f’;‘i’:r;::s"ﬁ,;?';"“ %
» we have piloted workshops to promote diversiyy | 10520 2017 and 48 In 2016, have?inks to our engineering.herit:ge g
of thought across key areas of our business We conduct advanced due diligence on our and they are also actively promoting 3
inclu_ding m.relanon to preduct development business pariners including our agents and Science, Te«_:hnology. Engineering and ' @
and innovatior:  distributors. We do this using a software (ool Manuiacturing. In the year we supported:
| that covers a range of areas including initial > 1he Derby
Gender mix across the Group™ and ongoing background checks, scregning Museum e
against sanctions lists, a compliance certification g
Female Female% Male Male®% | nionacs and the signing of a formal agreement. 2
Qﬂnployees 3.281 28% 8637 72% | | addition, all eur businesses carry out checks @
e {including sanctions screening} to understand %’
Managers 237 20% 921 80% | potertial customers and to identify risks that - z
Seior o1 %e se g | My be el supping o e, Midland Maker Challenge rise which wil ’
—_— s - . . be launched in 2019. Schools and higher
Board 3 3% ¢ 7% | Managing our supply chain education providers will compete to design
* Incluging agency and contractors, Our commitment to human rights extends f_across soit!tions to addres.s environmental and -
0 our supply chain, We conduct regutar audits to societal challenges;
) make sure that child or forced labour is not used The redevelopment of the Ironbridge Gorge
T e in our supply chain and that suppliers’ workplaces Museum Trust's Enginuity centre which Is
The .WISE Campalgn. ¢ | are safe. ff suppliers are unable to comply with a national design and technology centre
 Having a diverse workforce is essential. - - our strict responsible business requirements and interactive museum; and
: :::;2;:’&:‘3 é’;’u:“iz‘i'r“:?mggﬁ's?mg o we terminate our refationship with them. ThinkTank i Birmingham's restoration of
Campaign, a UK initiative that is focused | We use a combination of general corporate The Smethwick Engine, the world's oldest
on increasing the participation, contribution - | responsihility policies and specific supply chain working steam engine.
:t::gt::::c;ﬁ:;i‘:ge'?ii; :,nicﬁ:::émaﬂcs ‘ compliance actions to avoid any potential for E?;ﬁiﬂfa.w
 (‘STEMY). B,eing part of WISE helps rodern slavery in our supply chain. Our full ’
1o demonstrate our commitment to statement on the Modern Slavery Act and detail
encouraging gender diversity and we about the steps we take to ensure that slavery
aim to be a preferred employer for any"pne o and human trafficking do not take place within
- fooking to bulld a caresr in engineering. | our supply chain or any part of our business
A : is available on our website at: www.imiplc.com. ot Bamnm s Tt
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engaging the best people

ST N R F A

LTI

Recruitment

Our perfermance and ability to execute our
strategy reiies upon recruiting the best psople
with the most relevant skills and experience whe
share a passion for our values and behaviours and
are aligned with our sirategic ambition. We operate
a robust process for selecting and integrating new
employees. We follow the principles embedded

in our Recruitment Policy which aims to ensure
our process Is fair, transparent and congistent
with our ambition o develop our own talent

and leaders for the future.

Development and succession
planning

At IMI we have a strong talent pipeling and training
and procedures which enable our employees to
enhance their skills and progress their careers.
We operate a wide ranging platform of training
and development programmes designed to
increase employee skills across a number of
disciplines. During the year the internationally
renowned Brandon Hall Group awarded our
“Leading the Way to tngineering GREAT"
programme a gold award for excellence

in leadership development,

In addition to our training and development
programmes, all employees are provided with
on-the-job training and where appropriate,
personal mentoring. We also operate a
Performance Management Process 1o ensure
that all employees are appraised in a fair and
consistent way. This process provides employees
with regular opportunities to discuss their
objectives and personal development plans
during the year.

In ling with cur ambition to develop our own talent
for future leadership roles we set and achieved
our target of 40% for cur 2018 leadership group
internal succession rate (32% in 2017). For 2019
we are aiming {o improve this further.

S H R IR N S LA R

—

I R IR AT

Overview of our development and
training programmes

“Leading the Way to Engineering
GREAT” programme

Delegates: our leadership group

Objective: to ensure ws have ieadership skifis
across the Group capable of supporting our sirategy
and growth

Number of parficipants:

since launch in 2015 arcund 230
people including 70 in 2018.
Target far end of 2019 — 300.

“Being a GREAT IMI Manager”

Delegates; newly promoted and existing managers

Ohjertive: tn build a pipeline of manaoement talent
capable of supporting our strategy and growth

Humber of participants: since launch in 2015
around 1,150 pecple including 400 in 2018.
Target for end of 2016 —1,450.

“|MI Learn” — our Group-wide
E-training platform
Delegates: all employees across IMI

Objective: 1o provide accessible and effective on-ling
training to support training and development across
IMI glabally

Number of participants: we have 8 000 registered
users on qur learning management system

“IMI Lean”- the key to operational
excellence

Delegates: senior organisational leaders

Objective: to equip site leaders to accelerate their
lean improvements

Number of participants: 300 people have completed
the training and taken the learning back to thelr sites.
Target for end of 2019 — 48D.

By oe: boured

TS A I T IR A

Our graduate programme

Each year around 30 graduates, predominantly
with engineering backgrounds, join our business.
Recruited from aroung the world. our graduates
parficipate in a two-year structured programme
which includes different rotations and invelverment
in five projects across the Group.

Our apprenticeship schemes

We operats our apprenticeship schemes in many

of our European based businesses including

in Germany, UK and Sweden. Around 50 new
apprentices join us each year and for each of them
we create a career development plan which covers
on and off the job training across a range of relevant
technical skil's.

Here some of our apprentices explain
how their careers have developead

NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:

Maria Gollins
Apprentice, Junior
Applications Engineer,
IMI Precision Engineering
Fradiey.

WHY 1 JOINED:

| wanted to gain workplace skills and experience
that | could put inte practice while studying and
my intarests in science and problem solving led
me to choose a career in engineering. | wanted
to work at IMI for several reasons, including the
confinuous improvement culiure which provides
lots of opportunities for me to get involved in
really interesting projects.

MY EXPERIENCE:

{ have gained so many skills including machine
operation, computer aided design, lean and
ergonarmics. f have afso worked on a nuniber of five
assignments including several factory improvement
programmes and a project to design a large-scale
model for use at a trade fair in Germany. At the
same time, | have gained further qualtfications and
have alse been able to promote engineeting fo
pupils at focal schacls and careers fairs.




1 Graduates from the
Septembier 2018 intake
attend induction meetings
atIMi HQ.

fe is key to future

Engagement

Given how impertant people are to our success,
maintaining an active dialogue with them is
essential, We keep them informed about the
Group's perfermance and development as
well as specific matters that affect thern as
employees, And we listen to their feedback

tc identify the key issues that matier to them.

To facilitate this dialogue we operate a number
of reqular and ad hoc mechanisms, seme of
which are detailed cn this page. In addition,

in November 2018 Birgit Norgaard, one of our
non-execulive directors, was designated as the
Director responsible for undertaking Board tevel
workterce engagement. In this role Birgit will
participate in our Group management conference
and our Furopean Communications Forum as
well as other events invalving employees.

NAME AND CURRENT ROLE:

Nils Nesladek
Trainee Production
Designer, IMI Z&J,
Germany

WHY 1 JOINED:
M has a reputation for being a good employer
that offers an excellent training programme.
And because the Company recruits quite a
number of apprentices, | knew there would

be a good support network and lots of
opporiunities to share experiences.

MY EXPERIENCE:

{am currently a trainee production designer,
My rale covers both product design and
production engineering. Every day we're
Inoking to improve our customer offering which
means always evolving what we do and moving
forward. | am impressed by the future focus
of the company and the emphasis on
cortinuous improvement. | am pleased

to feel part of a secure, yet constantly
improving work environment,

| How we engage with our employees

Forum

Engagement

IMI Way Day

Group Conference

European
Communications
Forum ("ECF")

Town hall meetings

Puise surveys

IMI Eye

Group-wide and
divisional intranet

All employees participate in this annual event. Senior management
provide a business update, and employses then have an opportunity
to ask questions and discuss a range of issues. During the day
employees complete an employee engagement survey which covers
their views on a number of iImportant business subjects. Survey results
are recorded and the data s shared with employees. Action plans
are developed and used to measure and track progress. Further and
ongoing survey work is conducted where appropriate (¢ maintan
pasitive momentum,

300 senior employeas from across the Group meel for an update
on strategy and initiatives for the coming vear. The agenda includes
a Q&A session with the Executive Directors and Divisional Managing
Directors and the Chairman also addresses participants. Feedback
is gathered during and after the event with lhe conference's key
messages and outputs then communicated to all employees.

Employee representatives from arcund ten European countries meel
regularly with senicr management to discuss strategic progress and
performance compared 1o our key performance objectives.

The discussions cover updates on key initiatives such as [T security,
New Product Development, Lean and Value Engineering. Following
the meeting, minutes and newsletters are produced and used by the
employee representatives to share information with their collsagues.

Qur Divisional Managing Directors hold quarterly online town hall
meetings covering recent results and current inftiatives. Employees
are invited tc ask questions and provide feedback on their own
concerns and/or share best practice on current initiatives.

Where required we use quick and effective localised real-time surveys
to gather specific insights from employees. We use the findings to
inform our plans for improvement,

Cur cross-divisional magazine is published twice a year and covers
news stories and best practice sharing from around the Group.

Our global and divisional intranets are used to communicate key
developments and share best practice across the Group quickly
and effectively.

In 2018 over 8,900 employees participated in our IMI Way Day
survey. Results were consistent with the encouraging feedback
from previous years. In particular, 71% would recommend IMI
as a good employer to family and friends and 87% are clear
about the key priorities their division is focused on.
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Prioritising health

Our proactive approach Progress during the year

Health and safety is cur key priority and manitering and improving our performance is a core metric which During the year we improved our health and
is embedded in our reporting systems at mu'tiple levels across the whole of IML. All areas of our business | safely performance in a number of areas:
continuousiy assess their operations and twice yearly we undenake a formal Group-wide health and
safety audit at every major gperation te monilor the progress against our formal imprevement actions.
Details of this review process are outlined below,

» During the year the total number of LTAs reduced
mare than 20% to 18 against 23 in 2017,
The 2018 figure in¢ludes 3 LTAs recorded by
Bimha. which was acquired in January 2018.

Our bi-annual review process The Precision Engineering division is currently

Timing Activities Chjectives and outputs executing a range of plans and initiatives to
integrate fully Bimba into their North American
November/ Local assessment of key » Audit current benchmark sceres. operations and our key priority is o embed the
December” operational and safety . . T .
and areas, focused on business » identify business-critical issues, IMI health and safety culture and supporting

of improvernent. Undertaken progress and track KPI trends.

by independent IMI Group » Agree further improvermnent activities
or divisional specialist health with local and divisional ieadership.
and safety experts.

» There has been a slight reduction in the number
of sites reporting zero LTAs {78% compared
with 83% in 2017). This reflects the restructuring
of M! Critical Engineering’s manufacturing
footprint and the acquisition of Bimba.

» Monitor irmprovement activities.

January and July Publication of Lean - HSE » jdentify commonly recurring
benchmarking data on Group-wide hazards.
Group intranet.

» The LTA frequency rate improved considerably
{26%j) i1 2078 and across I there was 0.8
LTAs for every million hours worked compared
to 1.1in 2017.

» In 2017, we launched a Group-wide campaign
to prevent hand injuries which were the largest
volume of injuries reported in 2017, in 2018 i
Critical Engineering delivered a 65% reduction
In hand injuries and IMI Precision Engineeting
and IMI Hydronic Engineering reported reductions
of 35% and 56% respectively.

» Davelop remedial plans 1o address,

» Share best practice.
* Combined with semi-annuai Lean henchmarking reviews,

I line with our estabiisned policies and procedures we strive to ensure that accidents are avaided and
that our operations are risk assessad to be as safe as possible. All employees, as part of their induction,
receive health and safety training relevant to their role in line with health. safety and environmenitaf
compliance principles. Further on-site training in relation to hazard identification, risk assessment

and action planning is provided to employees engaged in manufacturing operations.

We repart, record and investigate every incident requiring first ald, ar medical intervention and in addition,
a full root cause investigation of every Lost Time Accident ("LTA") is presented 1o the relevant Divisional
Managing Director. Following a formal review at divisional level, a remediation plan is agreed and
implemented, and safety alerts are issued 1o share lessons leamed and increase safety awareness

May/June oerformance issues ang rate  GSVElop improvement aclions to procedures across Bimba's entire busingss,
across the Group,




2018 Health & Safety initiatives

Our passion to continue to improve our health
& safely performance resulted in the faunch
of a number of new procedures and training
initiatives during the year including “Learning
to See” and "Lock Out Tag Out".

UGHINPGAU|

“Learning to See”

In all our manufacturing operations
management routinely undertake “Gemba
Walks” — a Lean term used to deseribe the
detailed observation and identification of
potential hazards and risks. During 2018
we launched our “Leaming to See” training
programme which equips our operational
management with further knowledge and
skills to make their Gemba Walks even
more effective. The two-day training
programme takes place on site and
provides practical instruction on taking
the process beyond completion of health
and safety checklists 1o a more interactive
discussion with employees, This process
allows questions to be asked, encourages
suggestions for improvement and creates
" more effective and proactive engagement
on health and safety issues. During the
year over 600 employees based at our
manufacturing sites participated in
the Learning to See programme.

gouBLINCE) AIRIoOD) malnay bajeng
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“Lock Out Tag Out”

Lack Out Tag Out is a safety procedure
used to ensure that machines are properly
shut off and not able to operate during
maintenance and repair work. Prior to .
2018 every IMI business operated its own /

Lock Out Tag Out procedure and as a result, ’
standards of protection varied across the

Group. In an effﬂl"t tD reduce the riSk Df 1 Bunli m: IR KT 'm:,lbe actilor
serious injury in the high-risk shutdown . Vot Il fovare o s et
procedure, we introduced a new and Bt preonmane ¢ characlenst -
more stringent Lock Qut Tag Out procedure 2 Thie Grougss < ontinurd oeus on weanndg

which all our operaﬁnns are required approptosle glaves tecnlted noa !:I\;I'\Il it
to adopt reduztion i1 hancd e an M1 Crtical.

3 Throughout 2014, Learnrig 30 Sed traiminig
win dedecred 1o all Hydrenic Enagqinecnng
Mranf e ur g siles,

G En~urmiy sale practhces and the corrent
clotlunu protect our pp-ople,
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Ensuring that we minimise

our environmental impact

Our operatlons

We operate glebally with manufacturing faciiities
in more than 20 countries. We are committed 1o
operating these faciities in a sustainable way
and 1o minimise their impact on the environment.

We monitor and repcri our environmenital
performance at the monthly Executive meetings
with a view 1o delivering continuous improvement
and reducing our CO. emissions year-on-year.

Energy efficiency

Given the nature of cur production processes,
our main focus is energy efficiency and our
Group-wide energy efficiency programme delivered
a number of improvements during the year. Details
of same of the key projects are set out below:

» IMI Critical Engineering installed a new
award-winning heating system in three of the
manufacturing halls at IMi Z&J's facility in Dilren,
Germany. As a result, gas consumption in the
three halis has beer reduced by 30%.

» IMI Precision Engineering introduced a
renewable power system in parts of its facility
in Alpen Germany, Following the instaflation
of solar panels and heat pumps the facility's
C0, emissions and energy consumption
have reduced.

» IMI Hydronic Engineering instalied new LED
lighting throughout its Swedish plant in Ljung
which has helped reduce €0, emissions and
electricity consumption.

We support the Carbon Disclosure Project ("CDP™)
climate change initialive and submit annual CDP
reports which cover our risk management approach
to climate change and our emissions performance.

Since 2015, on a like for like basis {excluding
Bimba), we have reduced our GO, emissions by
over 4%. In line with our centinugus improvement
cuiture and investment in our operations, we are
committed to further reducing our emissions

in the future.

I

CO,emissions

‘000
tonnes

:g-

T

2018

2018 2018

Reduction in waste and scrap

As outlined on page 22, imoroving operational
performance is one of our key strategic priorities.
By running our business more efficiently we
enhance our competitiveness, save casts and
reduce waste and scrap levels. Each of our divisions
has made significant progress in this area including:

» INN Critical Engineering: at Ml Z&J's facility
in Germany, Lean methodology preblem solving
lechniques were used to identity three main
areas for improvement, including welding errors.
Processes in the plant have been adapted and
improved and as & result scrap levels have
reduced by 58% year on year.

=

iMI Precision Engineering: since 2017, M
Precision Engineering Fradley's scrap levels have
reduced by 67%, driven by the implementation
of Lean process design and the Fradiey team
undertaking regular problem solving and Kaizen
continuous improvemnent activities. Lead times
and inventory levels have shown radical
improvement as a result.

IMI Hydronic Engineering: the division’s facility
at Erwitte, Germany has continued {o reduce its
scrap. Building on the 50% reduction achieved

in 2017, the plant reduced its scrap levels by

a further 10% in 2018. The appiication of Lean
methadology and problem solving to identify

the root cause and implementing impravement
actions underpinned the improvement.

Our products |

Our products and technologies help our customers
operale their processes safely, cleanly and
efficiently and help address some of the biggest
global challenges facing the world today including
climate change and resource scarcity. Below are
some of our products that help reduce emissions
and energy consumption.

» IM Critical Engineering’s EEEasy-Seal™:
this Innovative sealing system for control valves
prevents the leakage of emissions in oil refineries
and petrachemical plants.

» IMI Precision Engineering's PET
blowing blocks:
this market leading product reduces the amount
of air, and as a result enerqy, required to
manufacture plastic bottles,

» M| Hydronic Engineering’s Halo:
launched in 2018, this thermostatic radiator
head, which has a buit-in sensor, controls the
temperature of individual rooms by autematically
adjusting flows, depending on ambient
temperature. Compared with a manual ragiator
head, it can reduce energy consumption by as
much as 28%.
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.~ biodegradable waste. The facility al4o han
, rgin water harvesting system which collects
rain and feeds it back inle the ground.
. #Farther iMormation abrout the new plam can
* - be'folnd en page 20
} 2 Hygwnic Enginecring's now thermoslati
¥ ?Qead Hale nol only helps to achicve energy
- avings for homeowners, it aluo has i
| stylish modern design.

'il
O

L o

3 New energy efficient ond environmentally
friendly LED tighting ;1 Hydraric
Engineening's plant m Swetieh.

"
¥ 41MINorgren PET tlowing block.
5 BET bottle manufaciuring.

’6 EEEasy-Scal™ witl en~ure it significant
reduciion in valve leakages.
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Organic revenue growth

Yo
) = +5%
A =
0%

= 8%
i
:[ 7
5 T 2016 2017 2018

Organic revenue growth excludes the impact

of agquisttions, disposals and foreign exchange
movements, The revenues from acquisitions are
only included in the current year for the period
during which the revenues were also included in
the prior period. In 2018 the Group's continuing
businesses dellvered 5% organic revenue growth,

i Segmental operating profit

Muhans

A

£227.7m £240.9m £266.3m

T 2018 2017 2018

In 2018, Group segmental operating profil was
£266m compared te £241m reprasenting an
increase of 11% on an adjusted basis. On an
organic basis, after adjusting for the impact

of exchange rates, acquisitions and disposals,
segmental operating profit increased by 9%.




Skilledemployics holp cnsure

world-class qualily products
Jor owr customers.

Health & Safety lost time
accident rate

Par 100,000
hours

0.07 o C.08

2016 T 2078

The health and safety of all our employees is
paramount. We measure gur progress in this
area by tracking our =1 day lost time accident
frequency rate ('LTA rate’). In 2018 our LTA
rate reduced to 0.08, reflecting the Group’s
continued focus on identifying and reducing
workplace hazards.

Lean assessment

66% 1%
Year-end Year-and N Year-end
2016 2017 2018

During the year we continued to improve our
cperational performance and Lean scores.

Qur six monthly benchmarking process is now
fully embedded, and scores continug to reflect
the improvement which is being achieved across
alt Group cperations. Our highest score is now
35% and the average has increased from 31%
when we first benchmarked the business in
2014 to 75% at year-end 2018,

Return on capital employed

12,5% 12.4%

2016 2017

Return on capital employed ('ROCE'} is defined
as segmentat operating profit after tax divided
by capital employed. Capital employed is defined
as net assets adjusted to remove net debt,
derivative assets/liabilities, deferred tax and

to reverse historical impairments of goodwill
and amortisation of acquired intangible assets.
In 2018, ROCE was 12.8% which compares

tc 12.4% in 2017 and reflects the Group's ability
to deliver improved profitability despite mixed
market conditions.
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Qur risk management framework

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that we manage our
risk exposure appropriately to achigve our strategic objectives and build
sustainable shareholder value.

The Board determines our risk appetite and menitors and reviews the risk
management processes we operate. The Board delegates responsibility for
implernenting and menitoring internal controls and other elements of risk
management to the Chief Executive and the Executive Committee. The Board
has also tasked its committees with responsibility for key areas of risk, as follows:

» oversight of financial reporting, internal financial controls and assurance
processes — the Audit Committee;

» succasston risk - the Nominations Committee; and

» remuneration and incentive structure risk - the Remuneration Committes

Furlher information about the roles and responsibilities of the Board and each
Commitiee is set out on pages 52 to 79.

Our risk appetite

in determining our risk appetite, the Board considers a number of factors
including our strategic opporiunities, the risks that could affect our business
and our ability to mitigate their impact. Our risk appetite, the nature and level
of risk we are preparad to accept to achieve our strategic objectives, is divided

into three categorigs: prudent, balanced and receptive.

Risk appetite

Prudent i Balanced & Raceptive

Strategic risk
Qgerational risk :

Compliance risk

How we approach risk management

Across the Group we operate a "top-down, bottom-up approach” to risk management which is illustrated in the graphic below. This approach allows the Board
and the senior leadership team to actively assess strategic risks and monitor the measures used to mitigate, transfer or avoid such risks. It also ensures that
operational risks are identified and managed at multiple levels and that key risk information is communicated effectively across the Group.

Cur risk management process is embedded in all our businesses. It provides guidance on how to identify, evaluate and manage risks which could impact

our performance and our ability to implement our strategy.

STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT FROCESS

» Determings risk appetite Board
» Revigws principal nsks,
- Monitors and reviews risk management processes

- Reviews bi-annually a detailed analysis of the Group’s nsk profile including supporting divssional
data and the actions undertaken t¢ ensure compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code.

~ Reviaws annually the effectiveness of the Group's intermal contrals

» Respansible for ensuring risk management culture is intsgrated Divisional
across their division and aligned to the Group's objectives, and

» Develops bi-annually a detailed Groug and divisional risk profile which is based on information
uploaded to the Grougp intranet by each manufacturing operation. This prefile analyses each

» Datermings principal risks and mitigation strategies. Executive division's most significant risks and cutlines mitigation strategies.
) ’ ) ‘ Commlttee
» Monitors changes in the risk profile,
» Monitors quality and effectiveness of business level risk
management processes.
» Operates and monitars an active and effective nsk Cperating » Maintaing an up-to-date risk profile which identities the key risks facing the business, assesses
management process. companies mitigating processes and contrals, operates key performance indicators 1o validate the

= Updates operating companies on pringipal risks and
mrtigation strategies.

-~ (parates reporting systems that increase management N
awnarship and accountabilily.

effectiveness of those controls and identifies areas for improvement
» Pubkishes risk profiles for each manufasturing operation to the Group intranet twice a year.

» Provides monthly updates on key risks, mitigation and controls through incorporation of risk
profile data in monthly management reporting process.




Our principal risks

47

5 TEGIC Capitalising on signfficant orgamc
GROWTH growth opportunities
The principal risks facing the Grodp are shown in order of priority in the table below, PRIORITIES
This analysis covers how each risk could impact our strateqy and explains whal we KEY 9 L“Qﬁg‘i”nﬁ"aiﬁé’em‘m”a'
are doing to moniter and mitigate each risk area.
The Group is also exposed 1o broader financial market risks, in particular, currency @ mﬁﬁ%g"gi&,@;ﬁ;@nr
exchange rate volatility following the Brexit referendum. A description of these risks
and our centralised approach to managing them is described in Section 4.4 of the Expanding our aodressehle markets
financial statements. through targsted acquisitions
STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
— GHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANT THE RiSK
GLOBAL ECONOMIC » The threat of a ‘ne-deal’ Brexit is the nsk » Builg f exibilizy o respond W mar«el conditions aro
OR POLITICAL INSTABILITY of both EU and UK ports not coping with *he potential impact assaciated with Brat

~ The possibility that the UK leaves the EU with
neither a transition peried nor a free trade
agreemsnt in place continues to pose a risk
to the supply chains, ongeing aperations and
profitability of the Group

= IMI Critical Engineering continued te face highly
competilive markets and an ongeing slow-down
ir the New Construction Fossil Power sector
The impact has been managed through ongoing
restructuring actions including expanding the
division's Value Engineenng activties and
entering new less severe market areas

» Whilst remaining in a strong competitive
position, IMI Precision Engineering has also
experienced volatility in some gecgraphies
and sectars.

= IMI Hydronic Engimeering markets remained
stablc with steady growth in most markets. and
nght-sizing actions were undertaken lo ensure
the husiness could respond to market changes.

o

the additional volume of customs work
which could impact our supply chain
and saies delivery.

» The Group operates in dverse global markets
and demand for our products is dependent on
economic and sector-specific environments

= A dowinturn in & global or reguonal economy
ar political instability could impact end market
demand, negatively impacting revenue and
our ahifity to deliver our strategy and achieve
market expactations.

» Divisional project teams formed to idenvify ne-deal
Brexit isks ane budd mitinat:on contirgancy plans,
EU-U oreas-barder Trarsaction flovs have hesn
mapped ad crtical sapply cha n nsks wendfied by
custorner and part, with specric action plans putin place
Our mégn objective and the focus of our comingsncy
planring s to min mise irterruptions t car suppl, crain
ANt ensure: our fustomer delvery commitments are met.

= Maintair a balanced portoh ope ating across 2
rarge of markeis, seciors and gaographies vath
ro single dependancy.

= Monitor key custamers and respond quickly to changes
11 ther demance

= Utlise core [orecasting processes thal ersure
onerational outpd! can be nght-sized to market
demand.

= Undenake enhanced stress testing and sensitivty
analysis of business plans and regutarly review key
market and seclor metrics.

» bocus on enhancing competitveness by roreasing
irvestment in New Product Development and Value
Ergineerng and imsproving operat-onal perormance

» Davelop robust Lonbingency plars to ensure agibty
to realign the cost base as required

FAILURE TO DELIVER MAJOR
TRANSFORMATIONAL PROJECTS
ON TIME AND DN BUDGET

RN EEFIRNN O S
i IS N

» Successful ERP implementations across the
Group :n 2018 continued to demonstrate the
proficiency of our system implementation teams
and proven effective control.

= IMI Critical Engineering has stccassfully
managed a number of significant restructuring
projects over the cowrse of 2018 — including
several plant closures — on time and to budget.

» The Group is continually evohing, bath in
response to external market pressures and
to achieve our sirategic goals.

» Change projects include business
regrganisations and imptementations
of complex new {T systems.

» Failure to deliver these change projects on
fime and on budget, and failure 1o raspond to
changing market conditions, could adversely
impact our financial performance.

» Operate robust systems and proredures "o manage
and momitor business proiects. including clear and
measurable milestones, which are reviewed regularly
Iy Divisional Managing Directors

» Review major project progress at monthly Exccutive
Committez meetings.

» Conbnue 1o enhance risk assassment processes and
mitigation acticn plans

» Lindertaxe specialist IT and Group Assurance reviews
af major T projects

» Develop detailed contingency plans

» Hold monthly operational and ERP stegrng committes
meetings which rigorausly review project progress.

» Post ga-live audits 10 review progress on
implementation plans

QUALITY ISSUES LEADING TO
PRODUCT FAILURE, RECALL,

WARRANTY ISSUES, INJURY,

DAMAGE OR DISRUPTION TO
CUSTOMERS' BUSINESS .

PR ALY T

N U RnGE

» Qur operational performance continued 1o
improve over the course of 2018, Details of key
developments can be found on page 22.

» During the year, we successfully launched a range
of new products, maintaining our high standards
for quality and customer satistaction. The level of
risk has remained the same year-on-year due to
the strength of the procedures and controls in the
New Product Development process.

@

0o

» Develeping safe, innovative and technically
advanced products is at the heart of what
we do.

» Falure to deliver the quality required
could result in negative financial and
reputational damage.

» Estabkshed Group-wide slandard for Advanced
Product Quality Planning process (APQP} which
every business reports on weekly and monthly,
This 1dentifies improvements in the early phases
of the development process.

» Continued focus on Cuality Management Systems
and audits.

> Test finisned products and secure customer sign-off
on the most critical products.

» Deploy targeted Lean events to improve quality.
including Implementation of Obeya reviews.
Reviewed every 6-manths with Group-wide
Lean assessment programmie,

» Continue 1o upgrade falznt with & facus an guality
and product development expertise and expenence.,
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STRATEGIC GROWTH
PRINGIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING
- CHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFEGTED 1S IMPORTANT THE RISK

FAILURE TO INTEGRATE
ACGQUISITIONS SUCCESSFULLY AND
DELIVER THE REQUIRED SYNERGIES

<>

» Qur post acquisition mtegraton process, which
deploys a mix of divisional and Group resources,
ensures that the right people across all disciplines
arg available to sucressfully project manage
acquisition integration.

» Succassiully deployed the integration process to
monitor and manage Bimba Manulacturing post
acquisition. Progress has been tracked using a
structured integration plan with key milestones
and responsibilities.

» AN integrat part of cur strategic plan is to make
value enhancing acquistions,

» Failure to deliver the post-acquisition strategy
could reduce the value of acquired businesses.,

» Ungdertake annual review ta identify potential target
acquisitions that align with our strategy

+ [dertify hard and soft synergies within targeted
acquisition opportunities.

» Adhere to formal acauisit on approval, due diligence
and post-acquisition integration processes.

» Daploy a rigorous 100-day process to effectively
monitor and manage post acquisition intearation.

FAILURE T0 COMPLY WITH
LEGISLATION OR A BREACH OF OUR
OWN HIGH STANDARDS OF ETHICAL
BEHAVIOUR

= We do not engage with customers, suppliers
or any other third parties who are not aligned

with aur own code of conduct and strong
ethical standards

~During tha year e intreduend internat controls
and procedures to ensure compliance with the
£U General Data Protection Regulation.

» Prior 1o the November 2018 deadline, we closed
down all trading activities with Iran following the
re-imposition of US sanctions.

» The ¢hallenging territories in which we operate
make the risk of requlatory breach a continued
area of focus. As such, our risk profile remaing
unchanged.

» The global markets and regufatory environment
demand the highest standards of conduct and
adherence to compliance rules and procedures.

~ Failure to comply with legislative requirements or
a breach of vur Code of Conduct could resultin
significant financial and reputational damage

» As we expand our operations 10 achigve growth it
is essential that we maintain our high standards
of cenduct and compliance precedures.

» Legislative requirements in relation to tax,
anti-bribery, fraud and competition law include
rigorous monitoring and traiming of new and
exislity ernpluyses.

- Committed to fostering a poshive cubire underpinned
fy core values anc hehaviours that promote fair and
ethical working prachces.

= Continue a robust internal controals declaration
process.

s tstablished dedicated compliance resources at Group,
divisional and Iocal levels. Fach division have specific
compliarce plans in place which are executed over
the couJrse of the year

» All employees are provided with easy acress to
policles, manuals, guidelines and standard eperating
procedures via our giobal intrangt,

» Undertake regular employee training focused on key
risk areas such as fraud, antibribesy and corruption
and how 1o apply the IM} Way in everyday siluations,

» Operate a confidential independant hotling to
report concerns

> Undertake rigerous due dikgence and approval
procedures on thad party agents Terminale afl
non-compliant agents.

» Operate stringent procedures and processes for
geahings with tugher risk territories, including formal
training for relevant employees.

» Actively monitor and manage trade sancticns

FAILURE TO MANAGE
THE SUPPLY CHAIN

= The possibility that the UK leaves the EU with
neither a trangtion period nor a free trade
agreement in place continues to pose a risk 10
the supply chains, engoing operations and
profitability of the Group.

» Growth in our IMI Precisian Engineering markets
has placed pressure on our suppfiers, in some
cases impacting on our delivery performance
in 2018. In response, the division upgraded Its
supplier management processes and Is executing
specific improvement plans for critical suppliers.

(X

o Ju ]

» We depend on a significant number of suppliers
who provide essential products and services.

» Faiture to manage our supply chain, especially
in respect of quality o on-time delivery to our
customers, could have a material impact on our
financial performance and reputation.

» Authonse the purchase and manufaciure of long lead-
time companents 1o and from our UK/EU supply base.

~ Execute our centingency plans in the case of & ‘no-
deal Brexit and continue to monitor the situation and
react accordingly.

» Moniter risks on a reqular basis and develop
contingency plans to mitigate the impact of supplier
failure, increased pricing or any other supplier
associated risk.

» Assess specific Supplier Code of Conduct nsks across
divisional supply chains and audit fegh-risk suppliers for
all aspects of supply chain risk including Modern Slavery.

» Opesate preferred supplier lists for 2l major matertals
and components. Where appropriate, certain suppliers
are gperating under a framewnrk agreement.

» Regular review meetings with key supplers and,
as required, deploy escalation meetings.

» Monitor key supplier performance using
supplier scorecards

~ Carry adequate safety stock and/or maintain
dual supply sources for critical components.
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STRATEGIC
GROWTH Q Capitalising on significant arganic
- growth opportunities
PRIGRITIES
KEY Improving eperational
performance
Increasing investment in
New Product Development
@%&5 Expanding our addressable markets
through targeled acquisiens
STRATEGIC GROWTH o
PRINCIPAL RISKS PRIORITIES THAT WHY WE THINK THIS HOW WE ARE MANAGING T
- GHANGES DURING 2018 COULD BE AFFECTED IS IMPORTANT THE RISK 3
o
[
UNALTHORISED ACCESS TO - Whilg we have a well-daveloped strategy to = Gontinug our T Security Improvement programme %

keep ahreast of new threats and continually
mprova the Group's [T infrastructure, we
tannot guarantee that our actions are keaping
pace with the constantly evolving threat
environment

» Unapproved access to our [T systems could
result In loss of intsllectua! property, frauduient
aclivity, theft and busiress intesruption.

@

- The digital and secunty threat environment in
relation to our IT systeras and infrastructure is
constantly and guickly evalving. We continued
{0 invest in sirengthening our IT systems
and protecting our data, alongsie raising
awareness of cyber security across all parls
of our business.

» During 2018 the Group significantly upgraded
our anti-malware, intruder detection, USB
device control and intermet filtering rapabiliies,
It addition, we have deployed laptop encryption
and completed a significant number of firewall
replacements {o reinforce our infrastructure
against new and emerging threats,

= A security awareness campaign, 'Be Cyber

Safe’ commenced rofl out during 2018 and
will continue te Fun threughout 2018,

OUR IT SYSTEMS

across the Group_ This includes 24/7 network
manitoring via a secunsy oparations centre.

» Centrahsed security scftware in place. Continusd
ermphasis on upgrading and strengtheing our
ex:5ting hardware and software agains: new and
emerging threals

- Wonthly reviews with Dvisicnal Mangging Direceors
te assess prograss and menitor future actions
ang pricnlies.

» Continug to rase awaleness of cyber security through
regufar employee communications.

» Ingtigared dicaster recovery plans on all essential
IT assets, ncluding stringent system hack up
procedures at all of cur husinesses
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INCREASINGLY COMPETITIVE = Increased competition could lead o loss » Confinue to embed effective New Product Development T
MARKETS @ of customers and/or prcing pressures processes ncluding competitor tear down testing, B
resulting in lost sales, reduced profits and benchmarking competitor products and Valug Engineenng. ch;
o margin deterioration. » Aclive participation n internalignal trade fars and shaws %
@ = Ltilise our metrics 1o track pertormance ard idertify é
» Markel dynamics continues to be a significant areas for improvement §
consideration for the Group and impacts all » Continue to review site capacity 10 ensure hest
three divisions. We have experienced increases utilsabion and improve productivity.
in maleria!, labaur an other costs which » Devetoped standard costings 1o ensure thorough
impacted our business over the course of 208 urderstanding of product cost and internal processes
= Value Engineenng processes enadled iMi 10 track and manage cost increase appropriatgly. e
Crical Enginesring to win £180m of new - Continue to enhance cperational performarce, quality 3
orders in 2018. delivery and senvice standards through Lean inplementaticn, 2
- ; . &
+ Divisional resiructuring activiies continug to « Undertake egular customar feedback performance -
efficiently manage our fixed cost base and surveys and implement astion plans whsre 5
will remain an ongoing focus over the improvements are required. zgn’
course ot 2018. o - z
= Continue Value Engineering astivities in all three =1
w1

divisions to deliver better, more cost-effective products
to the customer.

» Operate market specific pricing strategies o
maintain marging and continually review supply chaim
perfermance o mitigate or defer input cest inflalion

NEW PRODUCT » Qur sustainable long-term growth is refiant » Embed New Product Davelopment inta strateqic
(2 on delivering & pipeling of innovative planning process with technology and product
DEVELOPMENT L“ new products. roadmaps included in each divisien’s five-year plan.

» Failure 1o deliver market Jeading progucts
on time and on budget will impact our ability
o grow.

NISK MOVELT HT @ .
B0 CHARSE
» Qur end to end Advanced Product Quality

Pianning $APQP) and New Product Cevelopment

processes have successfully delivered
competitively priced new products to market.

= During 2018, processes covering design,
prototyping, testing, costing and launch
1o rarkets, were embedded across all
three divisions.

= A New Product Development and Future
Innovation strategy was put in place for
each divisicn in 2018.

= Funther infarmation about our New Preduct
Development activities are detaled on page 24.

« Continue to invest in research and development to
ensure we target the mest profitable opporiunities

» Estabikshed centres of design and
technological excelience

» Track new product introduction plans and actions
on both & weekly and monthly hasis.

» Track key performance metncs including sales
from new products and research and development
spend against sales.

» Continue competitor provuct tear down and testing,
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Board of Directors

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman ({74)

Nationaiity
British

Committee membership

Nominations Commitiee — Chair

Date of appointment
2015

Expertise

Significant UK and mternaticnal
board experience

Extensve knowledge of both
engineering and rranufacturing

Strong track record m private
equity, mergers and acouisitions

Specialist capabidty in finance

Key external appointments
Non-executive Chairman of
Alance Trust ple

Nom-executive Chiairman of the
British Business Bank plc

" Roy Twite assumes Chiet Execulive role from Mark Selway on 9 May 2019,

Mark Selway
Chief Executive’ (59)

Australian

Executve Committee

2013

Expenenced and proven
Chief Exccutive

Sofid track record running
rternational engineering
Lusinesses

In-degth knowledge of relevant

end-markets inciuding ol & gas,

energy and automotive

Roy Twite
Executive Director! (51)

British

Executive Committes

2007

Proven organisational and
engingenng expartise
Management capabiity hawing
run all of IMl's divisions
extensive knowledge of
end-mrarkets and

customer base

Non-executive director of
Halma ple:

ljp Find aut more: www.imiple.com/about-imi/leadership-and-governance/poard.aspx

Daniel Shook
Finance Director (51)

American British

Fxecut ve Commitlse

2015

Fxtensyve financial
management experience

Exterisive knowledge of complex
process manufacturing across
arange of industral sectors
Strong internationat
perspective, having worked in
a numbor of key geographies
dunng his time with two leading
global businesses

Carl-Peter Forster
Senior independent
non-executive director (64}

German

Audit Commities
Norminations Comniitiee
Remuneration Commitiee

2012

Expenenced international
business feader

In-depth knovdedge of
1he automotive sector

Expert in operational excellence
and Lean manufactuning

Significant experience in
technology management

Non-executive director of Geely
Autormobile Holdings, Hong Kong
Chairman of Lonidon

Taxi Company

Non-executive director of

Volve Cars Corporation
Chairman of Chemring Gioup plc

Member of the PWC
Advisory Board
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experience
- z
(o]
International £
business g
responsibility b
Birgit Nergaard Isobel Sharp Thomas Thune Katie Jackson Engineering g
Independent Independent Andersen Independent g
non-executive director (80} | non-executive director (B3) | Independent . non-executive dirsctor (45) (_;3
" non-executive director (53) %,
: z

Nationality
Danish

Committee membership

British

Danish

British

Public
company

Remuneration Commitiee Audit Comrmities - Gharr Nominations Commitlee Normnations Gommittes board e}
- Chasr Nominations Comm ttee Remuneratiion Comenittee Remuneration Conirmittee g
Audit GCommitiee S
Nominations Committee %
Non-executive cirector for o
erployee engagemant g
3
D
Date of appeintment 5
2012 2015 2018 2018
) Finance
Expertise
Expenienced non-executiye Considarable accounting, audit, Expenenced infermational Serior executive expenance n
. . V, governance and transactions business leader in sectors in Major ol cormnpanies and 2
Held seaior execullviDOsmons experience including tme as the | including o, energy, manne investment banking 3
In engineernng consultancy . e &
. 9 ) = ) t ¥ Sempr Technical Pannerl a and critical Infrastructure Specialist knowledge of the oil s
Wide ranging Te;ltora Deloitte ir: London, Fresident Broad experence as a non- and gas scclor and excellent &
SXRETIENCE NCIICING Entrgy,. of the Institute of Ghartered executive director of various corporate finance expenence g
water. infrastructure and Accountants of Scotiand public companies z
bulding industres and membership of the LK ?n.,
Experience in strategy as well Accounting Standards Board
as finance and accounting and the Reporting Review Panel Regulatory &
legal
Key external appointments _
Non-executive director of Non-executive director and Chairman of Ligyds Register Cxecutive Vice President
DSV A/ ang NCC AB Audit Committee Char of The Group. Non-executive drecior of Commercial and New
Non-executive director of Bankers Investment Trust PLC of BW Offshore Limited and Business Development at
WSP Global Inc. Non-executive director and Chairman of Orsted A/'S Rayal Dutch Shell
Audit Gommittee Chair of Member of the Danish
Winton Group Limited Comrnittee for Good
Honarary Professor at Corporate Governance M ergers &
Edinburgh Untversity Pl
Business School aCQUISItIOI’IS
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Leadership

J'am now in my fourth year as Chairman and very much enjoying my role.
Buring the year two new non-executive directors joined the Board bringing
considerable and relevant experience as well as fresh perspective.

The Board is fully engaged, able to both supgort and challengs the executive
team, and has the skills and experience to oversee governance, financial
controls and risk management. The qualily of debate al meetings is high
and we get valuable input from all of our non-executive directars. | benefit
from a strong working relationship with the Chief Executive and we keep
in close contact on & weekjy and more frequent basis as ngcessary.

Culture

The Board sets the tone at the top and has established ciear leadership values
and behaviours which are underpinned by a comprehensive Code of Conduct and
governance framework. The IMI Coade of Conduct is given to every employes
and features in inductien and other training and the annual IM; Way Day.

Our values and expected behaviours are built into our leadership development
programmes and performance assessment processes. Excellent leadership
behaviours are a pre-requisite for satisfactory performance and career
advancement in the Group. We have also embedded policies and processes

to set clear standards for comptiance and doing business in the right way.

During 2019 the Board will commence an increasingly formal review of the
Group’s culture by reference 10 a range of key indicators including Group-wide
emplovee survey data and sther stakehaolder feedhack.

Governance highlights

» Following a rigorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that
included both internal and exiernal candidates, the Board agreed to appaint
Roy Twite as IMI's next Chief Executive.

» The new chairs of the Audit and Remuneration Committees were fully
inducted and have made an excellent start in their roles.

i » Following wide ranging search processes led by the Nominations

Commitiee, Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson were appointed
to the Board as non-execulive directors.

» A review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy was completed by the
Remuneration Committee following stakeholder consuitation and the
resuiting proposals were approved by the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to refine the detailed plans behind the Group's strategy and to
gversee progress in the implementation of the sirategy at a business level.

» We completed the significant, complementary acquisition of Bimba
Manufacturing Company for £138m and following the Bimba acquisition,
the Board visited the principal manufacturing site near Chicago.

» An audit tender process was run by the Audit Committee which resufted
in a decision to reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as audilor subject to
annuai shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting.

» We continued to maintain good investor relationships and the
directors met with major shareholders as part of our ongoing
investor relaticns programme.

Compliance with the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code {the “2016 Code”)

| am pleased to report that IMI complied with the principles of the 2016 Code
throughout the year. We also complied with the 2016 Code provisions save
for a period when our Remuneration Committee membership was reduced
1o two while we brought other non-executives on board following the sad
death of Bob Stack late in 2017,

We acknowledge the intreduction of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code (the "2018 Code") and during the year we took appropriate steps 10
prepare for compliance with the new requirements which came into effect
from 1 January 2019. In November 2018, we anncunced the appointment
of Birgit Nergaard as non-executive director with responsibility for workforce
engagement, We have also revised our corporate governance framework
and the business cycles for the Board and its committees to refiect the
2018 Code ang appropriate training has heen provided to the Board,

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chairman

28 February 2019
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2016 Code - Compliance statement

The Board is committed to mamntaining good governance and confirms that
throughout the vear-ending 31 December 2018 the Company has applied
the principles contained in the 2016 Code and complied with its best
practice provisions save for a temporary shortfall in the membership of the
Remuneration Committee. The 2016 Code provisions require a Remuneration
Committee to have at least three members and there was a period of six
months when the membership was reduced to two following the sad death
of Bob Stack in December 2017, Two new non-executives joined us on

1 July 2018 and became memners of the Committee,

Further details of how we have applied the 2016 Code appear below, in the
Directors' Report and other cross-referenced sections of this Annual Repart,
all of which are incorporated by reference into this report, A deseription of the
main features of the Company’s internal control system and distlosures on
sther regulatory matters incluging statements on geing concern and viability
can he found in the Directors’ repert on pages 139 to 142. A summary of our
risk management systems and informaticn about the risks and uncertainties
that relate to our business is detailed within the '"How we manage risk’
section on pages 46 to 49. Information on corporate responsibility can

be found in the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43.

Board compaosition

Seven directors served on the Beard throughout 2018: the Chairman; the
Chief Executive; three independent non-executive directors; the Finance
Director and one operational executive director, In addition, two new non-
executive directors were appointed with effect frem 1 July 2018. The Board
row comprises nine directors. Al continuing directars stand for re-election
at each Annual General Meeting.

Independence of non-executive directors

The Boarg considers that all of the non-executive directors are free from
any business or cther relationship which ceuld materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgement and all meet the criteria

for independence under the Code, All of the non-executive directers are
regarded by the Board as independent. The Chairman was also regarded
as indepengent at the date of his appointment to the Board.

Board diversity

The non-executive directors are a diverse group from different backgrounds
and nationalities and bring with them a wide range of skills and experience
in commerce, finance and industry from around the world. More than half the
Board are non-British and there are five different nationalities on the Board.
Three of the nine directors are female {i.e. 33%). Our approach to diversity

is set out in more detail in the Corporate Responsibility section en pages

34 10 43 and in the Nominations Committee Repart on pages 64 and 65.

Non-executive / Gender

executive directors”

DR D)

4 Brtish

o (rnes

Nationality

3 Famals

& Mag

A Independent non-
execulve dirgctons

3 Exec utve directers

* Under the 2018 Code, the Chairman is excluded when considering
1he independent non-executive compasition of the Board.

Dates of appointment for the Chairman and
non-executive directors

Length of tenure at 31 December

Thomas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

Katie Jackson

Birgit Nergaard

Isobel Sharp

Lord Robert Smith

[ate of current letter of
appointment

12 Cecember 2018

Date of appointment

Thomas Thune Andersen 1 Jduly 2018

Carl-Peter Forster 1 October 7012 12 Decembzer 2018

Katie Jacksen 1 Jaly 2018 12 Decetnber 2018

Birgit Nergaard & Novermnper 2012 12 December 2018
12 Decomber 2018

12 December 2018

Isabel Sharp
Lord Robert Smith

1 Septenrper 2045
7 May 2015

Share ownership for the Chairman and
non-executive directors

The Chairman and non-executive directors are encouraged te hold
some shares in IMI within a reasonable period after their appointment.
As at 31 December 2018, the Chairman and nen-executive directors
all held IMI shares as sef out in the table on page 77.
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Meetings and use of Board time

The Board met on six eccasions during the year including two results
reparting meetings, a day dedicated ta strategy discussions and regular
review meelings at which updates are provided as appropriate covering health
and safety, operationa! and financial matters, investor refations, risk and legal
affairs, In addition, there were several days spent on Board site visits and
attendance at other events.

2018 Board cycle

In addition to the regular agenda items for operational matters, business
performance and corporate affairs, the following matters were dealt with
at Board meetings in the year:

February

Approval of the preliminary results announcement and Annual Report
Approval of the final dividend recommendation

Approval of the notice of Annuat General Meeting

Review of the first monthly phased forecast {the "1 Forecast”)

Review of a significant possible acquisition

May

Review of trading and gther updates

Approval of the interim management statement
Preparation for the Annual General Meeting
Strategy update

Review of the Q2 Forecast

Bimba integration update

Bopp & Reuther post-acquisition review

T update

Juty

Approval of the half vear results announcement
Approval of the interim dividend

Interim risk review

Review of the Q3 Forecast

September
Strategy review

Five year business plan review

October

Site visit to US operations

Corporate Governance Update

Review of the Q4 Forecast

Approval of the interim management statement

December

Budget for 2019
Annual risk review
Board evaluation
Strategy update

Board evaluation report

Post-investment reviews

Board attendance

Director Board % attended where

meetlings eligible
Thomas Thune Andersen’ 4/4 100
Carl-Peter Forster 6/6 100
Katie Jackson® 414 100
Birgit Nergaard 6/6 100
Isobel Sharp 6/6 100
Lord Smith 6/6 T0C
Mark Selway 5/6 100
Daniel Shook 6/6 100
Roy Twite 6/6 100

" Joined the Board on 1 July 2018.

In 2019 to date the Board has met once with all members in attendance.

Board roles and reserved matters

A description of Board roles and reserved matters is included in the IM!
Corporate Governance Framewerk (which can be found on the Company
webisite) and is summarised in the Directors’ Report on pages 139 to 142.

Induction and continuing development programme

A formal induction process for new non-execuiive directors is well established
and is the responsibility of the Chairman with support from the Chief Executive
and Company Secretary,

Business familiarisation is at the core ¢f induction and centinuing development
for non-executive directors at IM! and is centred around gaining an
understanding of the business and getting to know the wider management
team. The two new non-executive directors appainted in July 2018 have had
induction meetings with all of the members of the Executive Commitiee and
the auditor, In addition, afl new nan-executive directors will aliend a corporate
induction day for senior managers held at head office. There is also

a committee induction process designed to brief new committee members

on the relevant committee and the issugs it faces.

Non-executive directors are required to visit business units around the Group
and to meet face-to-face with senier operating management and key corporate
staff. There is regular contact between management and non-executive
directors during site visits, formal meetings and other company events.

During 2018 all of the nen-executive directors made site visits and the whale
Board visited US operations including IMI CCtin IMI Critical Engineering and
Bimba in IMI Precision Engineering. Feedback on Board and individual site
visits is discussed by the Board.

Appropriate training and other continuing professional development is available
1o all non-executive directors and reqular updates are given during the year
where relevant to the business arising at Board and committee meetings.
For example, approptiate best practice updates were provided to the
Remuneration Committee and to the Board during 2018 including training
on the 2018 Code. Non-executive directors are encouraged to undertake
additional training and several did attend external training during the year.
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Board visit to US operations

Site visits are an important, regular feature of the Board calendar.

In October 2018 the Board visited IM} CClin California and Bimba

in lllinois where it held meetings and toured the manufacturing sites.
IMi's core processes were seen to be well embedded at IMI CCl and
the business has made excellent progress with its Value Engineering
programme. Bimba is progressing well as a business and has achieved
the integration milestones &s planned.

IMI has a substantial presence in the USA which is home to business units
in all three divisions, In particutar, IMI Critical Enginegring has four business
units in the ceuntry including, IMI CClin California, and IMI Precision
Engineering has 10 business units including Bimba in Hinois. IMI CCi is

a powerful brand for IMI Critical Engineering and offers a range of valves
for power plants and cther severe service applications. Bimba is a key player
in 1he US Precision Engineering Industrial Automation market which joined
the Group from January 2018.

During the factory tours, managemant and staff had the apportunity to
showcase a wide range of improvements and local management made
business presentations, Senier managers from US businesses joined
the Board for discussions over dinner. Each visit provided an excellent
opportunity for the Board to meet a wider group of employees and gain
a more in-depth understanding of the businesses.

Board evaluation

The Chairman arranged an internally facilitated evaluation process in 2018,
An externally facilitated evaluation was last conducted in 2017 with Egon
Zehnder, Based on that review Egon Zehnder's overriding conclusion was
that the Board is run in an effective manner. Follewing discussion of the
report by Egon Zehnder the Board noted same areas for development
including routine feedback on siie visits, continuing development of strong
relationships among Board members and regular strategic progress
updates for the Board to be expanded, All of these development areas
have received appropriate attention during the year.

The 2018 internal evaluaticn exercise was carried out through a questionnaire
process run by the Company Secretary and by the Chairman canvassing the
views of directors individually. While the findings of the internal evaluation
were overwhelmingly positive, in keeping with the Group's commitment to
continsous improvement, the Beard agreed that it will make it a priority to
allocate a generous proportion of time to strategy, In addition, external training
opportunities for directors will be expanded and participation encouraged.

As senior independent director, Carl-Peter Forster conducted a review of
the Chairman with the cther nen-executive directors and shared the results
with the Chairman. During the year the Chairman atse met with the non-
executive directors individually for performance review and feedback
sessians and as a group to review the performance of the Chief Executive,
The Chairman passed on to the Chief Executive appropriate feedback

from the review of his performance.

The Chairman is satistied that the Board is fulfilling its respensibilities
appropriately and that the Board and its committees are effective and
that each director demonstrates a valuable contribution and is committed
to their role.

Q Bimba University Park, lllincis
IMI CCI RSM, California

IM{’s Board visit Bimba's University
Park site in October 2018,
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Standing committees of the Board

The standing committees of the Board are the Audit Committeg, the
Nominations Cemmittee and the Remuneration Committee, Fach of these
commitlees operates under written terms of reference which clearly set
out their respective delegated responsibilities and authorities. The full terms
of reference of these commitiees are pant of the IMI Corporate Governance
Framework (which can be found on the Company's website). The committees
report to the Board on their work, normally through their respective chair,
following each maeting.

Audit Committee Nominations Committee

Isobel Sharp Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair Char
Membership Membership

Carl-Peter Forster Thomas Thune Andersen

Birgit Norgaard Carl-Peter Forster
Katie Jackson
Birgit Norgaard

lsohel Sharp

Main responsibilities
Financial reporting

Main responsibilities
» Board and commitiee composition

» Oversight role i refation 1o financial staterments » Oversight of succession plans for the Board and

» Reviewing significant areas of judgement and the Executive Committes

accounting policies » Search for and recommendation of candidates
for appontment as non-execulive directors, Chief

» Reviewing the proposed statements on
Executve and other executive director positions

going concern and viability to appear n the
Annual Report

» Advising the Board on whether the draft Annual
Report is fair, balanced and understandabie

= Oiversily policy, promation of diversity and
monitoring of progress

» Monitaring announcements in respect of
financial performance

financial control and risk

» Moniloting the eflectiveness of nternal
financial controls

» Reviewing financiai risks ncluding fraud risk

» Quersight of internal audit and other key processes
for menitoring internal financial control

» Qverseeing the external audit process,
its objectivity, effectiveness and cost with
responsibiiity for setting the audt tee

» Making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of the auditor including oversight
of the audit tender process

» Reviewing the system for confidential
whistieblowing and the treatment of reports
received (this became a Board responsibility
from 2019}

Separate reporis from the commitiees appear in this Annual Report as follows:
Audit Committee Report on pages 60 to 63; Nominations Commitiee Report
on pages 64 and 65 and Remuneration Committee Report on pages 66 to 79,

| Remuneration Cormmittee

Birgit Norgaard
Chiar

Membership

Thomas Thune Andersen
Carl-Peter Forster

Katie Jackson

Main responsibilities

» Define and recommend the remuneration policy
for the Chaimman and members of the Executive
Commiites

~ Determine the individual remuneration packages
for the Chairman and members of the Executive
Commitlee within the policy approved by
shareholders

» Set annual and long-lerm incerttive metrics
and awards and delermine the outcomes for
the members of the Executive Committee

» Report on remuneration matters and constructively
engage with shareholders

» Agsess risk in respect of remuneration
and fncentive structuies in particutar
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Executive Committee , The Company has arranged a dealing service for the convenience of %
The Executive Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive and the other  shareholders with Equiniti (etails are shown on page 164). A sponsored g
members are shown on page 15. The Commitiee meets monthly and more i Leyel 1 A_merican Cepositary Rece|pt programme has been established for g
often as may be required. Regular attendees at its meetings include the which Citibank. N.A. acts as deposiiary (details can be found on page 164).

Group Financial Controlter, Director of Risk and Compliance, and the

Head of Investor Relations. By order of the Board

The Executive Committee is the senior management body and as part John O'Shea

of the broad remit set by the Chief Executive it monitors and manages Group Legal Director and Corpany Secretary

business performance, reviews progress against strategic objectives and -
formulates budgets and proposals on strategy and resource allocation for 28 February 2019 g
consideration by the Board. The Executive Committee is a management f-;:
committee which takes its autherity from the Chief kxecutive and is not z
a centmittee of the Board. é

The Executive Committee plays a key part in rigk assessment, risk

management and menitoring processes and receives regular reports
un investor relations, human resources, health and safety, internal audit, !
compliance, legal and other corporate affairs,

Investor relations

The Board oversees shareholder engagement and maintains a bafanced
understanding of the issues and concerns of major sharehclders. The Chief
Executive and Finance Director have primary responsibility at Board level
for investor relations and they, and the Head of Invester Relations, report
to the Board on shareholder issues at every Board meeting during the
year. Financial analysts' notes are circulated te the directors and the Board
receives regular feedback reports from the Comipany's brokers and public
relations advisers as well as from management. Dialogue is maintained
with the principal shareholders and the executive directors meet regularly
with institutional investors. During 2018 there were over 130 such meetings
with institutionat shareholders. The Chairman and the senior independent
director also are availabie to shargholders as needed and both have had
contact with investors during the year.
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The 2018 Annual General Meeting was presided over by the Chairman
and attended by all of the serving directors. The Chairman and the other
directors met shareholders informally afterwards, Each substantively
separate issue was put to the Annual General Meeting as an individual
motion. Natice of the Annual General Meeting was issued mare than twenty —
working days in advance of the meeting and the level of votes lodged for
and against each resolution, together with details of abstentions, are shown
on the M} website. The Board values the support of shareholders and the
poll results for all resolutions proposed at the Annual General Meeting
were well above 80% in favour in each case.

In addition to the Annual Report, the Company issues preliminary
results and half year results announcements, as well as two interim
management statements between results announcements. The IMI
website includes recordings of results presentations made by senior
management, recent annual and half year reports, interim management
statements, other corporate announcements and links to the websites
of the Group's businesses.
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Composition of the Audit Committee

Birgit Nergaard, Carl-Peter Forster and | wers members of the Audit
Committee throughout the year. All of the Committee members are regarded
by the Board as independent non-executive directors. | have chaired the Audit
Commitiee since 1 October 2017 and became a member on 1 September
2015. | spent my earlier career in the accounting and audit profession

and the Committee is satisfied that | have significant recent and relevant
financial experience, [ also currently chair the audit committee at The Bankers
Investment Trust PLC and Winton Group Limited. In my role as Chair | have
had significant interactions with key senior executives and reviewed in
advance selected papers and agendas for meetings of the Committee.

| ajso have met with our external auditor prior to Committee meetings.

My colleagues on the Committee alse have experience at audit committee
level and collectively the Committee has the skills, experience and abjectivity
1o be an effective Audit Committee and to challenge constructively. During the
year, Committee members received updates covering changes in accounting
standards, best practice guidance and ather key topics. Furthermore, we each
attend as appropriate external training sessions to update our knowledge.

The Committee asks the following to join all ar parl of its meetings: the
Chairmran, the Chief Executive, the Finance Director, the Group Financial
Controller, the Director of Rigk and Compliance, the Group Assurance Director
and the external auditor, Ernst & Young LLP {'EY'). in addition, other non-
executive directors are weicome {0 aftend.

The Committee holds at least part of several meetings each year alone
with the external auditor and with the Director of Risk and Compliance and
the Group Assurance Director. The Committee has the power to call on
any employee 1o atlend. The Secretary to the Committee Is the Company
Secretary, who is also the Group Legal Director.

Main areas of activity

The Audit Committee met four times in 2018, For two meetings the focus was
on the forthceming results reporting and for the other two the focus was on
planning and review matters.

The effectiveness of internat financial controls continues to be a key area for
the Committee which welcomes managemant's continuing commitment to
improve: the Group's internal financial controls, Based on its review of selected
key controls, EY agreed with management's assessment that the lavel of




control effectiveness at the locations assessed as full or specific in the gudit
remains high at 95%. Nonetheless, the Committee continues to assess with
management appertunities for improvement, which has resutted in a number
of further control initiatives being identified for 2019, The IT investment and
infrastructure programme is continuing and its implementation facilitates
improvements in the audit efficiency as well as in internal controls.

The Committes has reviewed reports on the six-monthly internal Gontrel
Declarations which are submitted by each business unit and cover internal
controls on financial affairs, IT, human resources and other key areas. The
process is managed by Group Assurance, which follows up declarations with
on-site visits to review scores and track appropriate improvement actions.
During the year, the Committee has sought information en the accounting
systems and internal controls at Bimba and has been pleased to note the
progress achieved fo date and the way in which its staff have responded to
the additional financial reporting requirernents which come with being part
of a public company,

A presentation on tax policy and compliance from the Head of Group Tax
was received by the Committee, Treasury matters were discussed with the
Group Treasurer.

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach and

its scope based on the size and level of risk of the entities concerned.
The Group and EY take a risk based approach to audit and other assurance
activity. The key audit matters igentified by EY are set out in its report on
pages 145 to 147 and were reviewed by the Committee in approving the
audit scepe and plan.

The Committee reviewed and approved for submission to the Board the
statements on going concern and viability, which are in the Directors’
Report on pages 13910 142,

The Committee advises the Board on the fair, balanced and understandable
requirements for the Annual Report and half year results statement. The Commitiee
has made positive reports to the Board against these criteria. The Committee's |
review inchuded consideration by the Committee of alternative performance
measures and the presentation of adjusting items in accordance with the
Group accounting policy. In respect of the Annual Report, tha fair, balanced
and understandable criteria are also a review area for the external auditor,
in relation to which it did not report any exceptions, The statement of
Directors’ responsibilities on page 143 includes confirmation by the

Board that it considers the Annual Report, taken as a whole, to be fair,
balanced and understandable,

Oversight of financial reporting

The Committee acts in an oversight role in respect of the Annual Repert
and other announcements with financial content, all of which are prepared
by management, The Committee received reports on the annual and half
year statements from management and the external auditor.

Significant judgements related to the

financial statements

In preparing the accounts, there are & number of areas requiring the
exercise by management of judgement and estimation. These matters were
the subject of appropriate detailed analysis and commentary in papers and

reports to the Committee by management and the external auditor.
The Committee reviewed the most significant accounting areas invelving
such judgements and estimates and these are described below,

Acquisition accounting for Bimba

Bimba was acquired on 31 January 2018 for a cash censideration of £138m.
The Group had a 12-menth measurement period after the acquisition date to
finalise the accounting for the acquisition of Bimba. Management exercises
judgement on the types of intangible assets acquired and estimates were
made of the fair value of all assets and liabilities. The provisional fair value
amounts recognised at the half-year in respect of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed were included in the notes to the half-

year financial statements. As set outin note 3.4 ¢ the financial statements
on page 108, one change in these provisional values was made at the

year end totalling £1.9m, The external auditor provided confirmation that

the judgements made in this connection, including the assumptions used

to value the acquired custonier relationships and the Bimba brand, were
considered to be acceptable,

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles arising

from acquisitions

The Committee considered the level of goodwill and intangible assets held
on the Group's balance sheet in respect of a number of pasl acquisitions
and whether, given the future prospects of these businesses. the carrying
value in each material case remained apprapriate.

The year end balance sheet includas goadwill of £437m and intangible assets
arising on acquisitions of £73m. The Committee reviewed the assumptions
and calcuiations used by management in the assessment of any impairment
of goodwill and intangihle assets and agreed that an impairmeant of the £2m
goodwill held relating to the IMI Hydronic Engingering service companies CGU
was required. Impairment was also a key audit matter for EY which reported
its findings 1o the Committae. Sectien 3.2 1o the financial stalements on page
105 provides datails regarding the Group's intangible assets and goodwill,

Revenue and profit recognition

The Committee discussed the timing of revenue and profit recognition on
some of the Group's larger contracts. in acklition, this is a key audit matter
on which EY reported to the Commitiee.

Having reviewed management's process and EY's report, the Committee
concluded that revenues and profits were appropriately reflected in the
financial statements. Section 5.4 note C 1o the financial statements on
page 135 provides further information.

The Committee also reviewed management’s assessment of the impact of
IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' which came into effect
from January 2018 and is discussed further in Section 1 on page 92.

Inventory valuation

The year end balance sheet includes inventorigs of £273m after £33m of
provisions. The Committee reviewed the judgements applied to standard
costing vajuations and provisions against excess and obsolete inventory and
concurred with management's assessment. This was a key audit matter for
EY, in respect of which it reported to the Cemmittee that inventory valuation
across the Group is considered appropriate. Section 3.1.1 1o the financial
statements on page 104 provides details of inventory valuation.
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Other judgement areas

The Commitiee reviewed the appropriaieness of the accounting treatment in
respect of pension scheme liabilities, including the actuarial assumptions used
and the Impact of one-off special pension events. The Commitiee also reviewed
reporting from the external auditer, which cencurred with the accounting for
pensions proposed by management. The Committee supported management's
on-going efforts to de-risk the Group's pension obligations which in 2018
inciuded the buy-out by an insurance company of £409m of UK defined benefit
chligations. Further details can be found in Sectien 4.9 on page 122.

In addition the Committee reviewed the appropriateness of rasiructuring costs
disclosed as adjusting items, leasing arrangements and the impact of IFRS
changes, property sales and the adequacy of taxation provisions, Further details
on these matters can be found in Sections 2.2 and 2.4 respectively, on pages
98 and 100.

Internal audit

The Committee received reporis from and monitored the work of the Group's
internal audit function, known as Group Assurance. Group Assurance reports
through the Director of Risk and Compliance to the Chief Executive, Group
Assurance also has a direct reporting line o the Committee. Group Assurance
work is primarily directed towards financial control audits but also covers
other selected areas including project planning and implementation for major
business changes and intarnal controt declarations. The principal projects
reviewed in 2018 were major computer systems implemeantations in each

of the three divisions and a revisw of the Bimba integration process.

During the year 48 inlernal audit reviews were completed with 42 of these
supported by divisional finance managers. Centrally the Group Assurance
team is led by experienced, senior internal audit professionals and across
the Group there are over 70 staff trained to conduct internal financial control
audits. Locations to be reviewed each year are selected on a risk assessed
basis, discussed with the Audit Committee and co-ordinated with the external
auditor. The completion of actions arising from internal audits and reviews

is monitored by the Committee and the track record is excellent.

Group Assurance works closely with the divisions to implement monitoring

and review processes to complement the internal and external audit caverage.

The annual plan and resourcing for internal audit were approved by the
Committee and 1ake account of the enhanced monitoring and review activity
within the divisions. From 2017 the scope of internal audits has been
extended to cover certain other operational and commerciai risks.

To achieve this a co-sourcing model has been adopted, where experienced
financial managers from the divisions work with the Group Assurance team
on combined audits covering financial, operational and commercial matters,
Group Assurance has aiso trained divisional finance managers in financiai
control auditing skills and provided a toolldt to enable them to carry out
financial control audits at selected sites in the internal audit plan. Financial
centrof evidence binders have heen introduced across the Group in 2018,
These binders help internaj audits become mere efficient and support
fransition and continuity in the event of the changes in finance staff.

The Committee welcomed management's decision to introduce the
binders as a further step to ensure robust financial controls.

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of Group Assurance with
management and received input from the external auditor. The Committee
was nleased with the further development of the co-sourcing mode! with the
Group Assurance Team and experienced financial managers from the divisions
working together to enhance the effectiveness of assurance processes,

An area for improvement which was identified is for Group Assurance

to do more to share best practice around the Group.

External audit independence and
performance review

The Committee approved the proposed external audit approach and its scope.
The Committee considered the independance and objectivity of the external
auditor lo be satisfactory. In assessing auditor independence the Committee
had regard ta the Financial Reporting Council’s best practice guidance for
audit committees. In addition, the external auditor confirmed that its éthics
and independence palicies complied with the requirements of the Ingtitute

of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,

The policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit work was reviewed and
updated by the Committee in 2016 to take accounl of developments in
regulatory requirements and ethical guidelines for the audit professien.

The policy requires approval by the Committee Chair for any non-audit
engagement which is more than trivial. The Finance Director monitors any
proposed non-audit engagements of EY and refers t¢ the Committee Chair
for approval as appropriate, The policy does not allow work 10 be placed with
the auditor if it could compramise auditor Independence, such as functioring
in the role of management or auditing its swn work, Non-audit fees naid to
the auditor were £0.1Tm 2017: £0.7m}), which represents 3% of the audit
fee and demonstrates the tight control which is maintained in this area.

One non-audit engagement involved fees above £30,000 and the main arsas
of activity were the interim results review and an operating risk assessment.
The Committee considers the level and nature of non-audit work to be
modest and not to compromise the independence of the external auditor,
We are satisfied that EY is fully independent from the management and

free of contlicts of interest.

Benchmarking of the audit fee was conducted in 1he context of the full audit

tendar process described below and the fee is considered by the Committee

to be appropriate. The Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit
fee payable to EY.

To maintain the objectivity of the audit process, the extarnal audit partner
respensible for the Group is rotated within the audit firm at least every five
years and the current Senior Statutory Auditor, Simon O'Neill, was appointed
following completion of the 2017 audit.

We formally reviewed the effectiveness of the external audit process.

As in other years, a questionnaire was used te review the exlernal auditer’s
performance. In 2018 the Commitiee also received feedback on EY through the
audit tender process (discussed further below). As a result of the questionnaire
and audit tender feedback, the Cemmittee believes the external auditor's
performance has been good and effective. To enhance further the external audit
process, centain improvement actions were identified and plans have been put
in place by EY to address these. These included action to improve continuity of
jurtiar tevel staff on the audit and more rigerous structure in the audit process,
especially in relation to audit deliverable requests and progress meetings.
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The audit tender process

Pursuant to the statutory reguirement for audit tendering after ten years
{i.e.in time for the 31 December 2019 audity and as signalled in the 2017
Annual Report. the Committee led an audit tender process during the year,
the result of which was our recommendation to the Beard to select EY as
auditor for the 2019 year, The Board approved the recommendation and is
seeking shareholders™ approval to re-appoint £Y as the external auditor at

Compliance hotline

During 2018 the Committee reviewed the operation of the independent
compliance hotline for reparting concerns, reviewed the mere significant
reports received and considered how these are investligaled and followed
up. The Committee believes that the hotline process and investigations are
effective and that proparticnate action is taken by management in résponse.
In line with the 2018 Code, this respensibility has heen transterred to the

the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The ferm of appoiniment is annual ‘ Board from the start of 2018,

and there are no contractual restrictions on the Committee’s choice of
external auditor.

The audit tender process nvolved the following main steps:

Considering how the tender should be conducted and
agreeing how the firms should be assessed

The Commitiee agreed that three firms should be invited 19 tender. This
decision was reached afier considering the needs of the Group, the existing
substantial relationship with one firm which currently provides tax services
to the Group and initial soundings taken from cther first and second tier
international aucit firms.

To support the Committee, the day-to-day running of the tender process was
managed by a panel which consisted of the Audit Committee Chair, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Group Finance Director, the Greup Financial Controller,

the Chief Financial Accountant and the Global Head of Procurement.

Tg assist in evaluating overall audit quality, the key assessment criteria were
the capability and competence of the audit team; the approach to, and
management of, the audit; relationships and cultural fit with the Group;

and quality of the propesal and management of fees, Throughout the process,
all refevant staff were provided with the detailed assessment criteria and
asked to provide their feedback to the tender panel,

Running the process

The tender panel issued the Reguest for Proposal te the three firms and
made available, in a data room, information on the Group and its divisions
to assist the firms. After receipt of the proposals, meetings were held with
Group representatives in our major geographies and the firms' staft. This
was followed by individual meetings with divisicnal heads and with Group
representatives, including the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Audit
Committee Chair, The results were then collated and made available to
the Commitige.

In May 2018, the three firms were invited to meet with reprasentatives of
the Audit Committee and the Group Executive to present their proposals
for the audit.

Selecting the firm

At its meeting in June 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the process and
the information and views gathered therein and agreed to recommend to
the Beard that, subject to shareholders’ approvai, EY should be appointed
auditors for the year ta 31 December 2019. The Committee believes that

a robust audit tender process was executed and that EY has the skill and
experience to ensure that a rigorous and challenging augit, led by EY’s Simon
O'Neill who has just compieted his first year as Senior Statutory Auditor,

is carried out.

|
i
|
|

. Committee attendance and evaluation

Director Audit Committee % attended where

meetings eligible
Cari-Peter Forster 4/4 100
Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100
Isobel Sharp 474 100

The Committee reviewed fts own performance and terms of reference
and received positive feedback from the evaluation exercise carried out
in refation to the Beard and each of its standing committees. As a result
of the evaluation, the meeting cycle for future years been adjusted to
improve efficiency.

The Committea appreved this report on its work,

Yours faithfully

Isobel Sharp
Chair of the Audlit Commitiee

28 Fehruary 2019
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Nominations
Committee Report

Composition

Carl-Peter Forster, Birgit Norgaard, Jsobe! Sharp and ) were members of the
Committee throughoul the year. Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson
joined the Committeg an 1 July 2018, Far the purposes of the 2018 Cods,
all of the non-executive directors on the Committee ars regarded as
independent non-executive directors,

HE T L O LS TR SR IR S AT

Pt St gy B nre re s o i il it

o ff',‘u:;m‘sf‘rzm A E TR NN T 4T z'{i;erif’ Attendance

crpnainite e b Mo feved cang

Chappomteenis o i Laroative © Director Nominations % attended

The Todb tenns of dedereao e o e c?,,'g?{;‘:;g where eligible

e O bt i e SR CTG e Dte e Thomas Thune Andersen? 3/3 100

Praotnowerio on the Company © websilo and Carl-Peter Forster 474 100

Vs i eVine o ety cifeot froem v duanunry 2018 Katie Jackson’ 2/3 67

v take gocount of the 20018 Code Birgit Nergaard 4/4 100
Iscbe! Shamp 4/4 100
Lord Smith 444 100

! Joined the Committee on 1 July 2018, Katie Jackson had a prior commitment on
appointrent which pravenied her attendance at one of the three mestings held since
her appeintment.

Main areas of activity

Chief Executive succession

Following a rigorous selection process supported by Russell Reynolds that
included both internal and external candidates, the Board agreed to appaint
Roy Twite as IMi's next Chief Executive. He is a strong and experienced
successor who has been pivotal to the Group's continued success. He has
extensive operational experience, deep knowledge of our core markets and
outstanding leadership qualities.

The Committee is also reviewing the succession choices for a new Divisional
Managing Director in the IMI Critical Enginegring division. An announcement
on that appointment will be made in due course.




Board changes and recommendations for election and
re-election

The Commitiee commissioned Zyges Partnership to undertake a full search
process 1o recruit two new non-executive directors and recommended to the
Board the appointment of Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie Jackson, The
Committee also reconmended the appeintment of Birgil Nergaard as non-
executive director with responsibility for employee engagement. All of the
directors standing are recommended for ra-election at the Annual General
Meating. The Board approved all of the recommendations made by the
Committee for the renewals of appointment for continuing directors.

Succession planning

The Commitiee reviews Board caomposition and has formulated a structured,

medium-term plan for Board succession,

As already highlighted, during the year Thomas Thune Andersen and Katie
Jackson Joined the Board. Criginalty it was envisaged that they would join
alf three Board committees, but in the inferests of better balance ot overall
committee memberships, it was decided that they would serve on two,
the Neminations and Remuneraticn Committees.

During the year we reviewed talent development and succession planning
for the top 220 roles in the Group with the support of the Chief Executive
and Group Human Resources Director. We were encouraged to see that
significant progress continues o be made in terms of cultivating a stronger
pipeline of high-calibre talent as demonstrated by the internal appointiment
of the new Chief Executive and the strong list of internal candidates for the
Critical Engineering, Divisional Managing Director role. Further details of our
leadership development and succession planning precesses arg set out in
the Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43.

Review of time commitments and contributions

The appeintments of the Chairman and non-executive directors are made
on the basis of a formal letter of appointment including a stated minimum
time commitment judged apprepriate by the Committee. The Committee
considers that the time given to IMI by each non-executive director is
sufficient. The Board is satisfied that | have the necessary time to devote
te my role as Chairman.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits a diverse pool of talent can bring to a
beardroom and remains committed 1o increasing diversity across IM| by
voluntary measures. We will continue to review the composition of our
management teams and the Board to ensure that we have the right

mix of skills and experience while maintaining our effectiveness and
execution capabilities.

At Board lavel, more than half the Board are non-British and there are five
nationalities. Three of the non-executive directors are female, representing

33% of the Board, and there is a broad mix of backgrounds and experience.

We are supportive of the need to improve gender diverse representation
al Board and senior executive levels and are working hard to this end.
Further information on workforce diversity matters is given in the
Corporate Responsibility section on pages 34 to 43,

The Cemmittee welcomes its responsihility under the 2018 Code for
promoting broader diversity at Board and senior management level,

Committee evaluation

The Nominations Commiltee revievied its own performance and terms
of reference and received positive feedhack fram the evaluation exercise
carried cut in respect of the Board and each of its committees.

The Committee approved this report on its work.

Yours faithfully

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair of the Nominaticns Committee

28 February 2019
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Annual Statement from the
Chalr of the Commlttee
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Our focus this year has been hwofold: 1o ensure consistent application of
aur Policy and to ensure our remuneration arrangements remain approptiate
in the context of the challenging economic and market conditions we are
continuing 1o face in & number of our key markets.

Al the heart of our Policy is pay for performance and & high proportion of
our executive directors’ remuneration is closely lied 10 business performance.
The Committee select performance measures that align 1o strategy and
when setting stretching perfermance targets take into account a number

of factors, including the strategic plan, annual budget, analysts' forecasts
and econemic conditions, Qur objective is always to sef stretching targets
while at the same time ensuring that strong underlying performance, which
can sometimes be obscured by external macro-economic conditions, is
recognised. When assessing the level of perfarmance achieved the Committes
takes into account wider circumstances 10 ensure incentive outcomes are a
fair reflection of actual performance. Further information about the process we
follow when setting targets and assessing performance is set out on page 71.

2018 has been a year of good progress for IMI despite continued mixed
economic and market conditions, Group adjusted profit before tax has
increased by 12% to £251.2m while organic revenue growth increased

5% tp £1,907m on a constant currency basis. Cash conversion was 83%
in 2018, Subject to their approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
shargholders will receive a total dividend of 40.6p — an increase of 3%
from last year.

Our various strategic initiatives, which are aimed at harnessing the Group's
full potential, are progressing well. In particular we remain focused on Building
both competitive advaniage and shareholder value By continuing to invest

in new product development and improving our operational performance.

Our cost reduction initiatives have been successtully implemented and our
integration plan for Bimba, the business we acquired in January 2018,

is now being executed,
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How were pay outcomes linked to performance
in 20187

Annual incentives paid to executive directors in respect of performance
in 2018 were hased on strong financial perfermance and achievement
of stretching targets relating to Group adjusted profit before tax, organic
revenue growth, cash conversion and strategic and personal objectives.
Further information about these incentive arrangements is set out on
page 71. The Committee is confident that the annual incentive outcomes,
which range between 56.8% and 75.0% of maximum, fairly reflect
business and individual performance in the context of our engoing
chailenging operating environment.

2019 marks only the second year of vesting under the IMI Incentive

Plan {'iiP"). Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook were granted a
performance share award under the IIP in 2016 and the awards will

vest at 29.2% in March 2019

What decisions were made during the year?

The Committee reviewed the base salary fevels for executive directors
taking into account a number of factors including individuai performance,
2018 business perfarmance, prevailing economic conditicns and wider
circumstances, the Group’s financial parformance, and salary increases
for other employees. The Commitiee concluded that an increase of 2.2%
for Roy Twite and Daniel Shook effective 1 January 2019 was appropriate
and in line with the wider employee workforce. The Committee concluded
that Mark Selway would not receive a base salary increase for 2019.

The Chairman and non-executive director fees were also reviewed and
were increased by 2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019.

Looking forward

Chief Executive, Mark Selway, has given notice to the Board of his wish to
retire. Mark will step down as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting before retiring from the Board on 31 July 2019, Remuneration
arrangements relating to his retirement will be in line with his service
contract and the shareholder approved remuneration pelicy. In respect of
20119, Mark will be eligible for a pro-rated bonus for time served paid wholly
In cash in accordance with the IIP rules. Full retrospective disclosure of
performance against targets set will be made in the 2019 Annual Report.
All IP deferred bonus share awards will vest in accordance with policy.
Mark will not be eligible for a base salary increase or an lIP performance
share award in 2019. Taking into account Mark's performance in the five
years he has been Chief Executive, and his departure being for reason of
retirement, the Committee have agreed that all outstanding iP performance
share awards shall continue to their ordinary vesting date when performance
wil! he assessed against the targets set and any vesting wilk be pro-rated.

Roy Twite will succeed Mark Selway as Chief Executive at the 2019 Annual
General Meeting. Roy will be appointed on a base salary of £720,000.
Additionally, the pension opportunity for Roy wiil reduce from the current
level of 35% of base salary to 11%", Roy Twite will participate in the annual
incentive bonus and {IP on the same ferms as the previcus Chief Executive.

*in order Lo align with the pension contributions of the majority of the global werkforce,

Finally, the Commitlee welcomes the changes introdused by the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code and updated remuneration reporting reguiations
published in the Summer of 2018. Supporting our strategy, prometing
long-term sustainable success, transparency and independent judgment

are already at the core of our remuneration policy but alongside the Board
led review of the new Code requirements, the Committee has discussed

at length the implications for remuneration and taken steps in readingss

for their appfication from 1 January 2019. | lock forward to reperting next
year on how the Committee has complied with the new Code obligations.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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Annual Remuneration
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The Committee

Composition

The members of the Committes throughout the year were Birgit Nargaard
(Chair}, Carl-Peter Forster, and from 1 July 2018 Thomas Thune Andersen
and Katie Jackson. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code,
all of the non-executive directors are regarded by the Board as independent.

Responsibility

The Committee determines the remuneration policy and rewards far the
executive directors and other members of the Executive Committee and the
Chairman, The Commitiee also censiders the levels of pay and benefits across
the Group. A copy of the Committee's terms of reference, which has been
updated to reflect the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code, is included

in the IMI Cerporate Governance Framework and available on the IM) website,

Internal advisers to the Committee

During the year, the Committee consulted the Chief Executive, regarding
the packages of the cther executive directors and senicr managers. It also
received support from the Finance Director, the Group Human Resources
Director, the Head of Group Reward and the Company Secretary, who is
also secretary to the Commitige. None of these individuals were involved
in determining their own remuneration.

External advisers to the Committee

independent remuneration censultant, Willis Towers Watson, is formally
appointed hy the Committee and provided advice on executive remuneration
to the Committee in 2018. The Commitiee noted that the firm are actuaries
and administrators for the iMI Pension Fund, The Committse is comfortable
that these activities do not represent a conflict of interest and that abjective
and independent advice continues to be received by the Committee from
the dedicated team servicing it af Willis Towers Watson.

During 2018, Willis Towers Watson has also supported management cn some
broader reward and human resource matters. The fees charged by Willis
Towers Watson in respect of advice and sérvices to the Committee totalied
£79,594 in 2018. Willis Towers Watson are signatories to the Remuneration
Consultants’ Code of Conduct in the UK,

A summary of the Committee’s activities

during 2018

The Committes had three formal meetings during the year; attendance can

be viewed in the table below. The principal agenda items were as follows:

» gonsideration of shareholder feedhack and engagement with major sharehoiders
in relation 10 the proposed remuneration poficy;

| »final approval of the new Directors’ Remuneration Policy ('the Policy’) for

submission to the Annual Gensral Meeting in May 2018;

» a review of total compensation packages of the executive directors and the most
senior management of the Group as well as a review of workforce remuneration
and related policies lo ensure alignment with IMI's strategic growth plan:

» approval of achievements and outcomes under the incentive plans;
» gonsideration of the fees for the Chairman;
» setling the framework and target levels for the 2018 incentive cycle;

» approval of the granting of 2018 share awards to executive directors and certain
other levels of management including a review of the Total Shareholder Return
comparatar group to ensure it remains appropriate;

» review of the performance targets in respect of the 201 long term incentive
plan awards;

» review of IMI's gender pay gap results for the year ended 5 Aprll 2018
ang ensured compliance with legislation {see page 36);

» review of the UK corperate governance and regulatory environment
follewing issuance of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
updated reporting regulations;

» review of the engagement of the independent remuneration consultants
to the Committee; and

» review of the Committee's own performance, constitution and terms of reference.

Attendance
Director Remuneration % attended where
Committee meetings eligible
Birgit Norgaard 3 100
Cart-Peter Forster 3 100
Thomas Thune Andersen’ 2 100
Katie Jackson'-2 1 50

! Joined the Committee on 1 July 2018,

“ Katig Jacksen had a prior commitment on appointment which prevented her from attending
one of the two meetings held since her appeintment.
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Annual General Meeting voting outcomes Voting outcome Votesfor  Votes against Votes withheld Ef
The following table summarises the detarls of votes cast for and : - 5
. . , ) . Directors 89.1% 10.9% 0% I
against the 2018 directors’ remuneration policy, and the 2017 Rermuneralion e
annual remuneration report resoluticns along with the number of Policy 2018
votes withheld. The Committee will continue to consider the views of. Annual G2 6% 5.4% 07%
and feedback from. shareholders when determining and reporting Remuneration
on remuneration arrangements. Repon 2017
Executive single figure table (audited) _
923
Annual Long-term Other items in the nature %
Fixed pay variable pay variable pay of remuneration ‘g
{£000} {£000) (£000) {£000) By
%.
. z
All- Dividend
Taxable  Annual incentive IMI Incentive employee share equivalent Total
Director Base salary Pension bernefits bonus Plan {IIF} plans payments {£000}
See page Page 70 Page 70 Page 7C Pages 7110 73 Page 74 Page 75
2018 822 247 67 1,232 673 4 2 3,047 o
Mark Selway "3
2017 801 240 63 1.525 138 5 1 2,773 ]
Y]
2018 475 186 30 405 312 4 - 1,392 o
Roy Twite )
2017 463 162 I 541 64 4 - 1,261 g
[
2018 439 &g 40 409 211 3 - 1,190 a
Daniel Shook °
2017 418 84 39 506 a3 3 - 1,093

Earn share options on the date of grant in the relevant

) ) financial year fapplying a 10% discount as permitted
Taxable berefts: the gross value of all taxable benefits (or benefits under Ihe Save As You Earn Share Plan).
that would be taxable Tor a person tax resident in

Roy Twite served on the Board of Halma pic during the year and recelved fees of £55 750 in respect of this appointment which he retained. T
5

o

=X

These figures have been calculated as follows: All-employves share plans: ine value of free shares at award and dividends under o
the Emgloyes Share Ownership Plan i the refevant %

Base salary: the actual salary recenable for the year. financial year and the intrinsic value of Save As You c530
2

ezl

Pension. the cash allowance pad in leu of pension.

the UK; received in the year. Dividend payments: Far the ‘IiP an adleIO.ﬁ.a\ number' of shares
. . ) proportional to the dividends paid between the date

Annual incentive bonus:  the value of the annual incentive payabLQ for . of the award and the date of vesting are delivered on .
performance in respect of the relevant financial year he vesting date [no further dividends are accrued
(half of this is automatically delivered in the form of after the vesting date). This applies to both the
deferred bonus share awards when the execulive performance share awards and deferred bonus share
does not meet the share cwnership requirement). awards under the IP. Dividend equivalent payments

IMI Incentive Pan (11P): the value on vesting of the nil cost options that were arise from unexercised awards under the legacy PSE

subject to performance conditions over the three-
year period ending on 31 December in the relevant
financial year (see share price assumptions below),

Share price assumpticns: for shares vesting in 2019, that related to
perormance in the three years to 31 December
2018, the average share price over the final three
months of 2018 (971.20 pence] is used to estimate
the value of shares on vesting.
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Executive remuneration received in respect of 2018

Base salary

Salaries effective 1 January 2018 were agreed taking into account a

range of factors including the prevailing economic conditions, the financial
performance of the Group and comparative salary increases awarded from
other relevant employee benchmarks, The average increase for employees in
2018 was 3.0%, compared to 2.6% for the executive directors. Mark Sefway's
and Roy Twite's saiaries were increased by 2.6% lo £822 000 and £475,000
respectively, As noted in last year's report, taking into account the progress
made during his three year tenure and taking inte account relevant financial
director benchmarks Daniiel Shook's salary was increased by 5.0% effective
1 January 2018 1o £439,000.

Pension

The 'Policy" reduced the current maximum pension related allowance for new
hires from 30% t¢ 25% of base salary for a Chief Executive and 20% for any
cther executive director. The Committee considers this to be more closely
aligned with the wider employee pension provision at senior managerment
{evel within the Group and comparahle with norms,

Under existing service agreements, execulive directors received a taxable
cash allowance instead of pension benefits, Mark Selway receives a cash
aliowance of 30% of salary and Daniel Shook receives a cash allowance
of 20% af salary. Roy Twite receives a cash allowance of 35% of salary
as a legacy obligation from his appointment as an executive director in
2007 which confinues 10 be honoured.

Pension benefits for past service

Roy Twite was previously an active member of the defined benefit IMi Pension
Fund. He opted out with effect from 1 February 2007, before he became an
executive director and as a result, he retains past pensionable service up to
that date in the iIMI 2014 Deferred Fund {‘the Fund’).

The key elements of the benefits in the Fund are summarised below:

» the nermal retirement age under the Fund is 62 and Roy Twite may retirg
from employment with IMI any time after age 60 without actuarial discount.

» on death after retirement, a dependant’s pension is provided egual to 50%
of the member’s pension.

» should he die within the first five years of retirement, the dependant's
pension Is increased 1o 100% of the member's pension for the remainder
of the five year pericd.

» DENsions in payment, in excess of any guaranteed minimum pension, are
increased each year in line with price inflation up 1o a maximum of 5% in
respect of pension built up before 1 January 2006, and 2.5% in respect
of pension built up after 1 January 2006.

Accrued pension
in the Fund as at
31 December 2018 31 December 2017

£000pa £000pa

Accrued pension
in the Fund as at

Roy Twite 74 71

Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Benefits
During the year the executive directors received a number of benefits. These
are summarised below and amounts less than £10,000 p.a. are combined.

Mark Selway Roy Twite Daniel Shook

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Non-cash 22 14 13 10 26 21
benefits {(£000)
Company 20 20 17 17 14 14
car and fue(
allowance (£000)
Allowances and 25 26 - - - 4
reimbursement
{£000)
Total 67 63 30 27 40 39

In addilion to the above bengfits and allowances that are included in the
single figure table {refer to table on page 69), the executive directors are
also beneficiarfes of company policies that have no taxable value, including
directors’ and officers’ insurance, death in service cover, travel insurance
and personal accident cover.
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Annual Incentive Bonus

In setting targets and assessing performance the following process is adopted by the Committee:

1. Set performance
measures aligned
with strategy and
budget

2. Set stretching
performance
targets

3. Assess
performance

4. Take account
of wider
circumstances

5, Apply discretion
if required

As per the Policy, the Committee reviews and selacts performance measures,

¢ 8.

targets and ranges annually, which take account of the economic conditions, ;

strategy and the priorities of IMI at the tima.

1. Set performance measures aligned with strategy
and budget

The Committee reviewed and selected performance measures that were
fully aligned to the business strategy and the annual budget. These
remain unchanged from prior year, The 2018 annual incentive bonus
focused on a number of financial metrics and non-financial metrics
considered central to strategy. These included:

» Group adjusted profit before tax {40%).
» Organic revenue growth (20%).

» Gash conversion (20%).

» Strategic and personal obiectives (20%).

There was a health and satety underpin to allow bonuses te be paid
onfy when minimum standards were achieved.

2, Set stretching performance targets

At the time of setting stretching performance targets the Commitiee
considered a range of influencing factors that included the strategic
plan, the annual budget, analysts’ farecasts, economic conditions,
individuals’ areas of responsihilities and the Committee's expectations
over the relevant period.

The performance target range was established based on the annual
budget, which reguired true outperformance for Executive Directors

to achieve the maximum. The Remuneration Committee has a history
of setting challenging targets, evidenced by the average Annual incentive
Plan pay-out over the previous five years of 59% of the established
target maximum,

Assess performance

2018 has been a year of good progress for IMI despite continued mixed
economic and marxket conditions:

» Group adjusted profit before tax increased to £251.2m in 2018 from
£224.1min 2017, representing a 12% increase;

» (Group revenue increased 0 £1.907min 2018 from £1,751m in 2017,
» Cash conversion was 83% in 2018, comparad with 92% in 2017,
» Adjusted Basic EPS increased 12% from 65.3p to 73.2p;

» The total dividend for the year increased by 3% compared o 2017,
and

» Good health and safety performance and delivery of measurable
benefits from Lean and other health, safety and environmental
initiatives.

. Take account of wider circumstances

The Committee believes that the range of measures used 10 assess
performance of the annual incentive bonus énsures ihat performance
is assessed using a balanced approach, without due focus on a single
metric which could be achieved at the expense of wider initiatives.
Given the performance noted above and wider operational achievements
noted the Committee is comfortable that the annuai incentive bonus
outcomas represent a fair reward for performance delivered,

. Discretion to override formulaic outcomes and to

apply malus and clawback

Depending on the nature of the measure é.g. health and safety, the
Committee may exercise judgement in assessing performance and
determining the level of achievement. The Committee has full discretion
to override formulaic outcomes. As per the Palicy, the Commitiee also
has the power to operate malus and/or clawback provisions in the event
that the Company misstated financial results. The Commitiee also has
the authority to give such permission for recovery of awards in cases of
serious reputational damage, corporate failure and other circumstances.
No such discretion has been applied in respect of the financial metric
outcomes to the 2018 annual bonus plan awards.

s iealals V] |

manay oibeyens }

O
[+
=
=
=
a2
o
-
L]
o
Q@
<
@
=
=
b
=
s
P

SIUBWDEIS [ZIouRUI|



72 IMI plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Directors’ Remuneration Report
Annual Remuneration Report

Summarised in the tahle below is the achievement agalnst Group targets for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook and a combination of Group adjusted profit
before tax and Divisional targets for Roy Twite,

Director Measure Maximum Performance Targets Actual Actuai
opportunity {% of performance’ performance

salary) Threshoid Target Maximum {as % of salary)

Mark Selway  Group adjusted profit before tax? 80% £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 55.3%
Group organic revenue growth’ 40% £1,713.8m £1,778.5m £1.843.5m £1.844.4m 40.0%

Group cash conversion® 40% 70.7% B3.2% 91.8% 84% 19.7%

Strategic personal objectives A0% See table on page 73 87 % 34.8%

200% 148.9%

Danied Shook  Group profil before tax” 50% £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 34.6%
Group organic revenue growth’ 25%.  £1.713.8m £1.778.5m £1.843.5m £1.844 .4 25.04%

Group cash corversion® 25% 70.7% 83.29% 91.6% 8A% 12.3%

Strategic personal objectives 25% See table on page 73 85% 21.3%

125% 93.2%

Roy Twite Group profit before tax® 52.5% £211.0m £248.2m £273.0m £257.7m 36.3%
Divisional operating profit® 22.5% £84.1m £89.0m £108.9m £88.7m 3.5%

Divisional organic revenue” 22.5% £6245.9m T672.3m £638.5m £629.6m 18.7%

Divisionat cash conversion® 22.5% 81.2% 95.5% 1051 % 84-% 1.4%

Strategic personal objectives 30.0% See table on page 73 84% 75.3%

150% 85.2%

" Actual performance 15 stated at the exchange rates Used in the targets,

¢ Adjusted Group profit before tax, as set out in Section 2.1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange and acquistions,

*Growth of organic revenue, as set out in Section 2.1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange,

4 This is calculated as management operating cash flow divided by management operating profit al the stated exchange rates used in the targets.
“Management divisional eperating profit adiusted for the impact of foreign exchange.

< This Is as set out in Section 2,1.1 page 94, adjusted for the impact of foreign exchange.




Strategic personal objectives

As part of the strategic growth plan, the Committee sets sach executive direcior a number of strategic personal objectives each year, Performance against these
objectives is assessed using a combination of quantitative and gualitative reference points lo ensure a robust assessment process. Mid-way through the year the
executive Is reviewed against their progress towards achieving the strategic personal objectives with & full review undertaken by the Committee at the end of the
performance period. As well as performance against strategic personal objectives, the Committee considers the wider performance of the Group. A summary of
the strategic personal chiectives set for 2018 and the performance against them is provided in the table below,

Director Strategic persenal objectives Commentary

Mark Setway  Strengthen organisation: Transition of IMI Hydronic Engineering Secured the appointment of Phil Clifton as Managing Director of
leadership and sirengthen organisational structure; continue to IMI Hydronic Engineering and strengthened the managernert team,
improve operaucnal performance through Lean with addition of Pohcy Lean improvements continue 1o positively impact the perfonmance
Deployment across the Group; and actively sponsor and support the of all areas of the Group, and Pelicy Deployment now embedded
Group's diversity agenda. throughout the organisation. Group and Divisions actively engaged

with Diversity plans.
Strategic growth: refing acquisition targels aganst clearly defined Acquisition target st is fully developed and relationshps with key
and disciplned criteria and build strong relationships with acquisit on targets continue to develop. Signiicant progress made to continue
targels; continue to build strong relationships with investors; and o build strong investor relationships w.th saome notable successes.
ersure successiul execution of 2018 growth strategies.
Deiliver projects: strengthen IMI capabilities through enhanced IT Continaed successful rollout of enharced 11 systems in all three
improvement plans; revised go-to-market strategies; new product divisicns, and a significart upgrade of the Group's firewall,
portfolos and compelling customer solutions, authertication and third party providers completed on time and on
budget. Supply chain improvemernt plans in Precision Engineering
now fully developed with additional resources embedded across
the regions. All three divisions have now established strong sales
and marketing plans to suppoert go-to-market stralegies.

Daniel Shook  Strengthen finance organisation: execute sttong succession Strong succession planning in place at senior levels, with robust
planning, robust transition arangements with clear visibllity of transition plans established across the organisation. Divisional audit
resources and capatilities arcund the Group; support the teams’ controfs processes further enhanced through best practice
achieverment of best practice docurmentation for the divisfonal audit docurmentation processes. Irventory and fixed assets controls
teamns; and deliver agreed outcomes for Group Finance Contral, processes further enhanced. Strong performance from treasury
Treasury and Tax. and 1ax functions.

Deliver projects: strengthen IMI capabilities through enhanced Successful delivery of IT projects including ERP, Security

IT improvemert plans €.g. ERP; IT IoT advancements; deskiop Erhancement Pregramme and loT advancement, ensuring that

collaboration standards; and the security enhancerment programme. divisicns continue to effectively develop fosused intatives to
advance IMI's connected products.

Roy Twite Strengthen division: deliver rationalsation projects in line with the Rationalisation projects delivered on time and on budget in line with

approved busingss cases; further enhance team diversity when
opportunilies arise; improve Lean scores by the end of the year;
collaborate with other Divisional Managing Directors to drive
growth and technology agenda; and build strong relationships
with acquisition targets.

Deliver projects: deveiop plan to support continued margin
growth in 2019; deliver 2018 ERP milestones; and develop
artificial intethgence strategy.

approved business cases. All diusional diversity targets (ncluding
recrutrnent targets) met. Lean scores across the Critical Engineering
dwision have increased significantly to an average 74% from 70%
in 2017, Strong relationships have been developed with key
acquisition targets.

Scenano plans have been developed to support budgeted margin
growth in 2019, New ERP installations delivered on time and on
budget. New artif:cial inteligence strategy now fulty developed to
support growth agenda.

Based on the performance described above, the annual incentive honus outcomes for 2018 are set out below:

2018 maximum
bonus opportunity

Total bonus
awarded (£000)

Total bonus
awarded

Achievement of share
ownership guidelines

Bonus delivered
in form of cash

Bonus delivered
in form of share

(% of salary) {% of salary) at 31 Dec 2018’ (£000) awards (£000)
Mark Selway 200% 1,232 149,9% 114% 516 616
Roy Twite 150% 405 85.2% 253% 405
Daniel Shook 125% 409 93.2% 85% 204.0 204.5

* Details of the share ownarship guidelines for Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook can be found on page 74,
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Awards vesting under the HP

In March 2016, performance share awards were made to the executive directors under the [IP. The vesting of the awards was subject to the achievement of
three independent performance candilions as described below, measured over the three-years ending 31 December 2018. The 2016 IIP award will vest in

March 2019 at 29.2% of maximum.

Initial award Value on date of Number of initial Additional dividend Total shares Value of shares on

award? (€000} shares vesting equivalent shares vesting vesting? (£000)

Mark Sehway 213.007 1,962 62,98 7152 69,350 673
Roy Twite 98,563 208 28,777 3.309 32,086 312
Daniel $Shook 66,751 615 19,491 2,245 21,732 211

The three day average mid-market price on the date of award was 921.33 pence.

- The price on vesting is unknown a: this time and so the lotal number of shares vesting is valued at the average price over the last quarler of 2018 {971 .20 pence).

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

25% of the award was subject to the achievement of ROCE. This measure is defined
as segmental operating profit as a percentage of the capital employed during the
financial year ended 31 December 2018, Capital employed being Intangible Assets
fexcluding Acquired Intangibles and Goodwill), Property Plant and Equipment and
Working capita!, It compares the eamings of the Company with the capital invested.
ROCE was chosen as a measure as it represents how well the Cempany has used
its investment made by shareholders and capital from creditors to generate a profit.

The portien of the share award that will vest relaled to RCCE depends on ROCE in the
final vear of the performance period. For ROCE of less than 40% no award under this
element will vest. 25% of the award will vest fer ROCE of 40%, rising on a siraight-line
Irasis to full vesting for ROCE employed of 50%. At the end of the performance period
return on capital employed was 38.4% resulting in this element vesting at nil.

Totail Shareholder Return (TSR)

25% of the award was subjecl to the achigvemenit of a relative TSR performance
measure against a defined group of companies adjusled during the performance period
to take account of merger and acuisition activity during the performance period in fine
with the Committee’s established guidelines. TSR is defined as the movement in share
price during the performance period, measured in local currency, with adjustment to
take account of changes in capital structure and dividends, which are assumed to be
reinvested in shares on the ex-dividend date. TSR was chosen as a measure as it is
an external, relative benchmark for performance that aligns executives’ rewards with
the creation of shareholder value,

The portion of the award that will vest related 1o TSR depends on where M| ranks

in the comparator group. For a TSR rank that is helow median, no award under this
element will vest, 25% of the award will vest for median TSR, rising on a straight-line
basis to full vesting for upper quartile TSR. At the end of the three-year perfermance
period, the Company ranked in the lower quartiie of the peer group. The resultant
vesting attcome for this element of the award is nil.

Group adjusted profit before tax growth

50% of the award was subject to the achievement of the Group adjusted profit before
tax growth measure. This measure is defined as the profit before tax before adjusted
items as shown in the audited accounts of the Group. adjusted to reflect changes

in lhe Company's capital structure and any adjusted itermns, at the Remuneration
Commitiee's discretion,

Adjusted profit before tax growth is a key measure for IMI as it gives an indication of
the strength of the Company’s finansial performance and shows the amount available
to reinvest info the business, and pay a return to shareholders through dividends.

For growth of less than 2.5% per annum, no award under this element witl vest,
25% of the award will vest for growth of 2.5% per annum rising on a straight-line
hasis to full vesting for growth of 7.5% per annum.

| Over the three year performance period ending 31 December 2018 IMi delivered
a compound annual growth rate of 4.7%. The resultant vesting cutcome for this
giement of the award is 29.2%.

Deferred bonus share awards

In March 2016, deferred bonus share awards were also made under the IIP which
vest in March 2019, These are the form of share award used for mandatory bonus
deferral into shares of up to 50% of annual bonus payable where the executive
director is yet to reach their shareholding guidefine.

Discretion to override formulaic ocutcomes and to
apply malus and clawback

The Committee has the discretion to override formulaic outcomes and may
apply discretion 1o adjust the number of shares which would othenwise vest fo
effect recovery in circumstances where it sees fit. and it has the autherity to
give permission for recovery of awards in cases of serious reputational damage,
corporate failure and other circumstances. No such discretion has been applied
to the 2016 [IP award outcome for executive direclors,

Share ownership guideline

it is a requirement of remuneration policy that executive directors are subject to
guidelines which require them to builg a shareholding in IM! worth at least 250%
of salary for Mark Selway, 150% of salary for Danlel Shook and 200% of salary
for Roy Twite. The Policy permits the Committes discretion to determine that 50%
of any annual bonus earned is deferred into shares until the share ownership
guideiine is achieved together with 50% of any vested share awards. Each
axacutive IS then reéquired to maintain this share ownership guideline (subject to
allowances for share price fluctuations and changes in base salary thereafter).
When assessing compliance with this guidefine the Commitiee reviews both the
level of beneficial share ownership and vested but unexercised share incentive
awards on a post-tax basis. Atthough Mark Selway and Daniel Shook continue

10 make progress towards this guideling, and have a material interest in the
Company's shares, the Committee has determined that half of the annual bonus
nayable to Mark Selway and Daniel Shack as outlined on page 73 will be deliversd
in the form of deferred bonus share awards which must be held for 2 period of at
least three years and until the share ownership guiceline has been met. Further,
the Committee has determined that half of the performance share awards made to
Mark Selway and Daniel Shook in March 2016 and due ta vest in March 2019 must
also be retained until such time as the share ownership requirement is met, At the
end of the year Roy Twite significantly exceeded the share ownership guideline.




Share interests granted to executive directors during 2018 {audited)

Grants made under the HIP i The following performance share award grants were approved and made
in 2018:

Performance share award grants under the IIP were made on 12 March 2018 in
the form of nil-cost options. Awards are due 1o vest on 12 March 2021, subject

. I L HP shares Value on date Award as a
10 performqnce in three core ?mas aligned to ogr Ioﬂger—tefm strategic pricrities: | awarded of award" percentage of
ROCE (25%}. relative TSR (25%) and Group adjusted profit before tax (50%). | {£000) salary
The performance targets end vesling scale that apply to the 2018 IP awards | Mark Selway 181,644 2,058 250%
are as follows: | Roy Twite 83,971 950 2007
|
Daniel Shock 58,205 658 150%
ROCE Relative TSR Group Level of ;
adjusted vesting [ " The three day average mid-market price on the date of award was 1 131.33 pence,
profit before {
tax growth' * The IP is also usec to grant deferred bonus awards exercisadle after

Threshold 40% Median 2.5% ?5% | three years to salisfy bonuses delivered in the form of shares. Details of
Maximum 50%  Upper quartile 7.5% 008 these additional UP awards made in 2018 are shown in the table on page
Weighting 25%; 257 50%. _ . 77 under the “without performance conditions’ column. No performance

conditions apply to these awards,
" Annualised Compound Anrcal Growt Rate over 3 years,

;

i

|

I
Further details of the above performance targets can be found in the awards
vesting under the |IP section on page 74. |
For share awards granted in 2018 the TSR group included 17 companies to ensure complete alignment with qur peers and comparison to companies with
similar produgts, customers and global spread, The 2018 pesr group includes the following companies and these have been adjusted to take into account
merger and acquisition activity during the performance period in line with the Committee’s guidelines:

TSR comparator group companies

1. ArTAG 7. Ingersol-Rang 13. SMC

2. Belimo 2177 14, Smiths Group
3. Curtiss-Wright 9. Morgan Advanced Matenals 15, Spectris

4. Eaton 10, Parker-Hannifin 16. SPX

5. Emerson Electric 11. Rockwell Aulomation 17. Weir

6. Flowserve 12. Rotork

GKM has heen remaved from the TSR comparator group following s acquisitien by Melrese Industries PLC in May 20718,

All-employee share plans
Executive directors are eligibie 1o participate in the all-employee share plans on the same terms as other eligible employees al IMI. In 2018, Mark Selway,
Roy Twite and Daniel Shook received free share awards under the Employee Share Ownership Plan.

All Employee Share Ownership Plan SAYE
Nurmber of shares Value of free Number of options Value of SAYE Total value under the
awarded share award' awarded options Dividends all-employee share
(£000) (£0Q0) {£000) plans (£000)
2018 336 4 - . - 4
Mark Selway
2017 278 4 813 1 5
2018 336 4 - - - 4
Roy Twite
2017 278 4 - 4
. 2018 304 3 - - - 3
Daniel Shook
2017 235 3 - - - 3

"ln 2018 freg shares were awarded at a share price of 1.071.00 pence (1,292.00 pence in 201 7).
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Payments to past directors {audited)
Itis the Committee’s intention 1o disclose any payments to past directors, including the vesting of share-based awaras post departure on a basis consistent
with the centinuing executive directors. There were no payments 1o past directors during the year.

Chairman’s and non-executive directors’ single figure table (audited)

The following table summarises the total fees and benefits paid to the Chalrman and non-execulive directors in respect of the financlal years ending
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,

Director 2018 (£000) 2017 (£000)

Base fees Addtticnal Taxable Total Base fees Additional Taxable Total

fees benefits’ fees benefits?

Lord Smith of Kelvin 320 - 5 325 312 - 5 317
Carl-Peter Forster* 64 11 =] B3 62 1 3 66
Birgit Nargaard® 64 18 8 88 62 1 8 71
Robert Stack’ - - - - 62 26 3 91
Ross Mcinnes® - - - - 47 12 5 64
Isobel Sharp? 64 16 5 85 G2 4 z 68
Thomas Thune Andersent oV - 5 37 - - - -
Katie Jackson® 3z - 1 33 - - - -

" Includes fees for being Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee and Senior Independent Director until 7 Dacember 2017.
¢ In¢ludes fee for being Chair of the Audit Gommittee.

*Resigned as Director effectve 30 September 2017,

*includes fee for Senior Independent Director effective frem 11 December 2017,

" Includes fee for being Chair of the Remuneration Committee effective from 11 December 2047

" Pro-rata fee from date of appointrent on 1 July 2018,

* Taxabie benedits includes travel and hotel expenses plus tax costs associated with Board meetings held at M) HQ.
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Directors’ shareholdings and share interests {audited) %
The following table summarises the share interests of any director whe served during the year as at 31 Decermnber 2018 or at the date of leaving the Board. g
During the period 31 December 2018 {o 28 February 2019 there were no changes in the interests of any cusrent director from those shown save for 5
purchases within the IMI All Employee Share Ownership Pian on 8 January 2019 of 13 shares each on behalf of Mark Setway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook at
965.00 pence per share, and 12 February 2019 of 13 shares on hehalf of ach of Mark Selway, Roy Twite and Daniel Shook at 963.50 pence per share.
Director Total Beneficial Scheme interests
nteresls nlerests Nil-cost options ' All-employee -
With performance conditions Without performance conditions share plans E'U.)
Unvested’ Vested but Unvested Vested but %
unexercised unexercised P
Mark Selway 784,787 9.900 593,573 15,271 139,581 24,334 2,128 §
Roy Twite 405,318 123,107 274,514 - - - 7,695
Daniel Shook 241,524 7.507 187,295 - 45,424 - 1.298
Lord Smith of Keivin 14,300 14,300
Carl-Peter Forster 2,625 2620 - - - -
Birgit Norgaard 2,625 2,625 - - - -
Isobel Sharp 3.000 3.000 - - -
Thomas Thune Andersen 2,625 2,625 - - - - -
Katie Jackson 2,618 2,618 - - - - -

Vesting oates of share awards are shown in Section 4.11 on page 130.
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The following infermation is intended to provide additional context regarding
the total remuneration for executive directors.

2018 2017 Change
{£mj) (Em}
Dividends 107.9 1055 2%
Total employment costs for Group B15.8 578.7 6%

(see Section 2.1.3.1 on page 97)

In 2018, the total dividend for the year of 40.6 pence represented an increase
of 3% over last year's 39.4 pence.

Relative percentage change in remuneration for
Chief Executive

The Cammittee actively considers any increases in hase pay for the Chigf
Execulive relalive to the broader IMI employes population. Benefits and benus
payments are not typically comparable given they are driven by a broad
range of factors, such as geographical persuasion, local practices, eligibility,
individual circumstances and role.

Chief Executive Employees’
Base salary 2.6% 3%
Benefits 6% 4%
Annual bonus -19% 24

Al UK head office employees. This comparisan excludes our international workforce which
we believe wouid not provide a true comparison given differing local market factors.

Historical performance and remuneration

In addition to considering executive remuneration in the context of internal
comparisons, the Committee reviews historical outcomes under the variable
pay plans.

The graph below cempares IMI's total shareholder return (TSR) 1o the
FTSE100 over the last ten years, We compare performance 1o the FTSE100
as IMi has been included in the index in the past and it is a position where IMI
aspires to be, TSR measures the retums that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and assuming reinvestment
of dividends {source: DataStream), with data averaged over the final 30 days
of each financial year. As the graph below illustrates, IMI's absolute and
relative TSR performance has been strong over the last ten years.

Value of a hypothetical £100 investment

Vol
£l
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{450
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700
§100
o 2008 2033 200 2012 202 2013 2G14 2015 patal:] o7 208
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The following table summarises the total remuneration for the Chiet Executive over the last ten years, and the outcomes of short and long-term incentive plans as

a percentage of maximum.

Financial year-ended 31 December 2009 2010 2011" 2012' 2013 20142 20152 20162 20172 20182
Total remuneration (single figure, £000) 2,547 4,439 12.289 7.954 6,688 1,567 1.667 1.901* 2,773 3.047
Annual variable pay (% of maximum) 919% 95% 85% A7 % 627% 36% 40% 50% 95% 75%
Long-term variable pay {% of maximum) Bt 97Y% 95% 100% 100% - - - -

- Share Matching Plan

Long-term variable pay (% of maximum) 4fY, 100% 100% 100% 82.6% - - 3.5% - -

- Performance Share Plan

Long-term variable pay {% of maximum) . . R
- IMI Incentive Plan

- - 6.55% 29.2%

" Represents remuneration for Martin Lamb who was Chief Executive from before 2009 until 31 Decemher 2013,
? Represents remuneration for Mark Selway who was appointed Chief Execulive on 1 January 2014,
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Application of the Policy in 2019

Executive director fixed pay

Mark Selway will retire from the Board effective 31 July 2019 and will not
receive a base salary increase for 2019. Mark will receive a payment in
lieu of notice, representing two months' basic salary. Roy Twite is appointed
Chief Executive from the conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting.
from which date his salary will increase to £720,000.

‘The base salary for the Finance Director was increased by 2.2% consistent
with the average increase for 2019 awarded 1o employees.

To align with the pension contributions of the majority of the glehal
workfcrce, the pension opportunity for Roy Twite will be reduced from the
current level of 35% of salary to 11% from the date of his appointment
as Chief Exacutive,

Incentive pay

Annual bonus
In accordance with the Policy, the annual benus plan will be operated
as follows in 2079

» As In 2018, the 2019 maximum bonus opportunity is set at 200% of
salary for Mark Selway and will be pro-rated for time served and paid
wholly in cash.

» Roy Twite will be eligible for a maximum bonus opportunity of 200%
as Chief Executive and pro-rated in respect of 2019, The maximum
Bonus opportunity for Daniel Shook is 125%.

» Target bonus is set at 50% of maximum bonus opperunity,

» As In 2018, the annual bonus for Mark Selway and Daniel Shook will
be subject to perfermance in Group adjusted profit before tax {40%),
organic revenue (20%), cash conversicn {20%) and strategic and personal
objectives {20%). Health and safety will serve as an underpin to ensure
bonuses are only paid out when minimum standards are achieved.

» As in 2018, the annual bonus for the Chief Executive (both oulgeing
and incoming} and Finance Director will be subject te perfermance in
Group adjusted profit befare tax (35%), IMI Critical Engineering operating
profit {15%j, IMI Criticat Engineering organic revenue {15%j, IMI Criticat
Engineering cash conversion (15%) and strategic and personal
objectives (20%).

» The Committee has determined that the targets associated with the
performance measures will be disclosed retrospectively on the same
basis and to the same extent as for 2018 targets (see annual bonus
metrics tahle on page 72).

 Performance share awards under the IIP
~ In accordance with the new remuneration policy, the [IP will be operated
as follews in 2019:

» No award to be made 1o Mark Selway in 2019,

» Ag Chief Executive. Roy Twite will be eligible for a maximum opportunity
of 250% of salary. The maximum opportunity for Dantel Shock will be
set at 160%.

» Awards will vest subject to performance in three core areas aligned lo
our longer-term strategic priorities: ROCE (25%), relative TSR (25%)
and Group adjusted profit before tax growth (50%.

» Awards will be subject to a two year post-vesting holding pericd, extending
the total time horizon to five years. As per the Policy, vested awards which
are subject to a holding period will not normally be forfeited on termination
and the helding period will continue to apply to such awards {although
the Committee may release awards early from the holging period in
appropriate cases).

» The performance targets that wiil apply to the 2019 IIP awards are as follows:

ROCE Relative Group Level of
TSR adjusted vesting
profit before
tax growth'
Threshold 40% Median 2.5% 25%
Maximum 50% Upper 7.5% 100%
quartile
Weighting 25% 25% 50%

TAnnualised Compound Annual Growth Rate over 3 years.

Service contracts
The unexpired terms of the nen-executive directors’ service contracts can
be reviewed in the Board's Corporate Governance Report on page 55.

Fees for the Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman ang non-executive directors' remuneration increased by
2.2%, with effect from 1 January 2019. This is in line with the executive
directors and compares with an 3.0% increase across the wider workforce.

Birgit Nergaard
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
for and con behalf of the Board

28 February 2019
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Financial Statements"
Finance Director’s Introduction

Introduction from Daniel Shook

Dear Shareholder,

Welcome 1o the financial statements section of our Annual Report.

My financial review commentary is set out in this section alongside the primary statements. These financial statements are
presented with the primary statements first, followed by five sections: ‘Basis of preparation’, '‘Results for the year’, ‘Operating
assets and liabilities’, ‘Capital structure and financing costs’ and 'Other notes’.

Despite mixed market conditions, IMI delivered solid results for the year, with revenue, profits and operating cash flow all
growing in 2018.

The company has further mitigated the risks assoclated with the defined benefit pensicn schemes through the buy-out of
£409m of liabilities during the year. IMI continues o improve its overall control environment and risk management procedures
in 2018 through the implementation of a co-sourcing mode! for internal audits between Group Assurance and the divisions.

In 2018 IMI completed the acquisition of Bimba Manufacturing Company, which s contributing in line with expectations.

Daniel Shook
Finance Director

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information required by statute, accounting standards or the Listing Rules
to explain a particular feature of the financial statements. The notes that follow will also provide explanations and additional
disclosure to assist readers’ understanding and interpretation of the Annual Report and the financial statements.
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2018 ! 2017
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Finance Director’s commentary on
the consolidated income statement
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comprehensive income
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Profit for the year
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in equity
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Profit for the year
Cther comprehensive income!(expen_se)
Total comprehensive income/(expense)
Issue of share capital - 0.6
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Share-based payments (net of tax)
Shares acquired for:

employee share scheme trust
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Net debt
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018

|
2018 i 2017
£ | £

Cash flows from operating activities
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Section 1 - basis of preparation

1.1
Introduction
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1.2
Basis of accounting
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Section 2 - results for the year

What you will find in this section

93

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages you will find disclosures
explaining the Group's results for the year, including segmental information, adjusting items, taxation and earnings per
share. You will also find a summary of the Group’s alternative performance measures, including the definition of each

and the rationale for their use.

2.1
Segmental information and alternative
performance measures

Orgamc evenue growth and opaating pronl e the two shorl-term key
nevformance indicators of measues that reflect the way the performance
of the Group is rmranaged and monitored by the Executive Comiittee.

It this section the key constituerts of these two KPIs, being the Group's
adjusted revenues and segmertal operaling profite, are analysed by
reference to the perdonmance and activiues of the Group's segiments

and thefr operating costs.

2.1
Segmental information
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Section 2 - resUIts for the year
(continued)
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Operatng costs by function
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The following table 1s included to show how much of the cperating costs
deductedd from revenue 10 armve at the Group's statutony opeating piofit,
relate to cost of sates. seling and distibution costs, administrative
expenses and adjusting iterns,
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2.1.3
Spedific e

ements ot operating costs

Certain specific iterms of operating expenses are disclosad 10 provide the
reader of financial statements with rmore information regarding these costs.
This section provides this analysis.

2.1.3.1 Employee information
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2.1.3.2 Operating lease charges and operating lease commitiments

The Group enters into leases for property. plant and ecuiprmert assets
when doing so tepresents a more cost-etective or tuwer nisk option than
purchasing them. This leads to an income statement charge for the year
and future commaidments for the Group in tespect of these leases.
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Section 2 - results for the year

(continued)

2.2
Adjusting items

The adjssting tems category in the ncome statement Ircludes those items
which are rernoved from statutory measures o provide insight &3 1o the
performancs of the Group, Accordingly. adiustng items are included in a
separate cokimn on the face of the income staternent,

They include restructuring costs, special pension events, gains/losses on
disposals of subsidianes and properties. impairment lasses, the reversal of
gainslosses on econormic hedges, acouistion costs, the release of inventory
uphits recognised an acquisition and acouired intangible amaortsation,

2.2.1
Restructuring costs
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2.2.2
Gains on special pension events
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2.2.3

L osses on disposal of subsidiaries
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2.2.4
Reversal of net economic hedge contract
losses/gains

T

T et

il

[ N

£ oinnhi o

e i

trome i

EIFTRS YIS IR BTy

PG

tte e oenled fooe e ef b

2.2.5

Acquired intangible amortisation and other
acauisition items
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Gain on disposal of properties
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Taxation
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2.3
Earnings per ordinary share

99

Earmings per share 'CPS’) 1= the amount of post-tax proft attrbutable to each share fexcluding those held in the Crrployee Benaft Trast or by the Compan;h.

Basic EPS mzasures are calsulated as the Group profit for the year attnbxutable to equity anareholders divoed by the weighted averzge number of shares in

issue during the year. Dik.ted EPS lakes o accourt the dhative efect of all cutstanding share options priced below the market price, in arrving at the

number of shares nsed in its calculauon,

Both of these measures are also presented on an adjustod basm, to agwst the reader of tne financial statements 1o get a better undarstandimg of the
nofotmanrce of the Geoun. The note below demonstrates how this caloulation has been performed,

|
2018 |

2T
W milliort vl
TG B i Lo O8G0 BAIrYS L AN i 271.0 ’
e it 0.3 i
. IR R A Pide e anrge e b b 271.3 T
ey £m ! Ty
Statutory profit for ihe yvear 169.4 T
SO T g e s b ) _-_i
Statutory profit for the year atinbutable to owners of the parent = 169.4 | .
Slalrar v afit hora discomeenesdcpaeatins ot e . T i
Contmuing statutory profit for the year attributable to owners of the parent = 169.4 i T
[ AT B O I VT NIR S DR ST SR STRNDS RN RPN O RIRTEIEES 38.3° ALz
IR TR T I I P A P R S B TN A (93) [RR
Earnings for ad)usted EPS - 198.4 1o
Key 2018 | 2an?
Statutory EPS micasures |
Shatdry b e LPG 0 62.5p | LRy
Slatitory dilufee L Ps O 62.4p | I
Stvvncn Loaris cantne i b P A 62.5p | by
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Discontinued earnings per share
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Section 2 - results for the year

(continued)

2.4
Taxation

i operates through subsidiary companies aft around the wadrid that pay many
difterent taxes such as corporate income taxes, VAT, payroll withholkdings, social
secunty contributions, customs import and excise duties, This note aggregates
only those corporate Income taxes that are or will be levied on the individual
profits of IMI ple and its subsidiary companies for penods leating up 1o and
including the balance sheet date, The profits of each company are subject o
cortamn adiustiments as speciied by applcabie tax faws n each country 1o arnve
at the tax labilty that 1s expected to result on ther tax returmns. Where these
adustments have fulure tax impact then deferred taxes may also be recorded.

241
Tax governance, risk and strategy
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UK corporation tax
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Tax payments
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Recognised outside of the income statement

Annual Report and Accounits 2018
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2.5
Discontinued operations

Wien the Group has assets and liahilities that have been sald in the year or are likely to be sold rather than being held for continuing use, these assets and labilities
are included in current assets and liabities and dencted ‘heid for sake’ rather than in their usual categories, They are recognised at the lower of carying amount and fair
value less costs 1o seli. Impairment losses on the inftial classfication of assets as beld for sale are included in the Income Statement. even for assets measured at fair
value. as are impairmant losses on subsequent remeasurement and any reversal thereof, Once classified as held for sale, assets are no longer depreciated or amortised.

If they represent a significant enough propaertion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations. A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group's business that represents a separate major line of business that has been disposad of, is held for sale or is a subsidiary acqurred exciusively with a
view to re-sale. This means thal their trading performance, ie. their revenues, costs and other ilems of income and expense, are no longer reported within the
headéne figures in the income Statement and are instead reported in a separate ling, net of tax, called 'discontinued operations’. These amounts no longer form
part of continuing earnings per share, Comparative figures are restated to be shown on the same basis.

This enables the Income Statement for the current and prior year te be presented on a consistent basis and to convey a more forward-looking version of the
resuils for the year.
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

What you will find in this section

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group’s trading performance and the liabilities incurred as a resuit.
Liabilities relating to the Group’s financing activities are addressed in Section 4. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are shown in Section 2.4.7. On the following pages there are sections covering working capital. non-current assets,
acquisitions, other payables due after more than one year, provisions and pensions,

3.1
Working capital

Working capitat represents the assets and lishilities the Group genorates
through s trading acfivities. The Group therefote defines working capital as
trade ang other recevables, Inventory and frade and other payables. Working
capitatis managed very carefuily to ensure that the Group can meet its trading
and Tnancing obligalions within i1s ordinary operating cycle,

o provide Lhe Fxecutive Committee with insgiit into the management

of worlking capital, an important mezsure moritored 15 cash conversion.
Cash conversion is defined as the operating cash tiow (as defined in the
cummentary on the cash flow statement) dvided by the segmental operating
profit which therefore represents the proportion of segmental operating protit
generated durng the year that has been converted into cagh.

3.1

Inventories
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3.2
Intangible assets

The followirg cection shows the non-phycical assets used by tne Group to generate tevenues and profits. These assets nclude goodwil, customer retationshins.
orcer bocks, patents, develnpment costs and software developrent costs. The cost of these assets is the amourit that the Groups Fas paid for thery o, when
they have arisen due o a busmness combination, the far value of the specific ntangible assets that could be sold separately o which arise from legai nghts.

In the case o gocdwill, its cost s thie amount the Group has pan it acourirg a business over and above the far value of the mdmadual assels net of the latalitiss
acuared, The value of the goodwill can anse from a nurnber of sources, bul in refation to ow more recent acqusitions, it has been represarted by post-acquistion
synergies and tne skilis and krowiedge of the worktorce, The value of the Sroup's ntangble assets, with te excepuon of goodwil, reduces over the number of
years cver which the Group expects 1o use the assat, the useful ife, via an annuai amortisation charge to the income statement.

The Grous sphies its intangible assets between those ariming on acquisitons and those wh ch do nolt, because the amortisalion of acauired intangibles is recogrised
as an adpisting item in the ncome statement.

Whete there are iIndications that the value of ntangible assets 18 no fonger representative of ther vaiue 10 tne Group, for example where there 15 a customer
relationshm recognised but revenues from that customer are rechucing. or where goodwill was recogrised on an acquisition but the perfermance of the business
acquired is below expectations, the directors review the value of the assets 1o ensure they have not fallen below their amortised values. Il this nas happened,
a one-off impairment charge is recogrised. This section explains the overall carrying values of the ntangitle assets within the Groun anc the speciflic pidgerrents
antd estimates made by the dreciors in armsing at these valies,

3.2
Analysis of intangible assets

MNan-aeoured

Acoured Otk Total Onher non ptargley
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Exchange adjustments 16.0 7.0 4.6 27.6 2.6 0.1 301
Acquisitions 39.1 34.2 20.0 93.3 3.4 - 96.7
Additions - - - - 6.7 13.7 20.4
Transfers from assets in the course of construction - - - - 21.4 (21.4) -
Disposais - - (2.2) (2.2} {1.9) - {4.1)
As at 31 December 2018 475.5 236.6 122.3 834.4 1436 17.3 995 3
Amortisation
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Disposals - - (2.2) (2.2} - 4.0
Impairment 2.0 - - 2.0 - 3.2
Amoartisation for year - 16.2 25.1 - 369
As at 3t December 2018 ' 1805 3182 I YY)
Aet rook alie 31 Dee el 2017 T 314 42R., 251 6000
Net book value at 31 December 2018 56.1 516.2 17.3 606.7
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities
(continued)

3.2.2
Goodwill impairment testing

Gaodwill is not subject 1o an annual amortisation charge. Instead, 1ts carrying value is assessed annually by comparison 1o the future cash flows of the business
to which it relates the cash genarating unit o *CGLU ), These cash flows are discounted to reflect the tme value of money and this discount rate, togethar with
the growth rates assumed in the cash flow forecasls, are the key assumptions in this impalmert tesiing process.
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3.3
Property, plant and equipment
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Tre follcvang sechon concerns the physical assets used by the Group 10 generate revenues and profits. Thece assets irclude manutactuiing, distribution and
ofice sites, as well as eaupment used In the manutacture of the Group's products. The cost of these astets represents the amount mitially pad for them,

Wilh the excepton of the Group's kand and assets under consiruction which have not ver been brought o use, a depreciabon expense s charged to the
ncome staterment 1o reflect the annual wear and tear gnd the reduction n the value of the assel over tme, For detals on the penods aver which assets are
deprecated. see Section 5. Depreciation 1 caicufalad by refeience Lo the asseis’ usclul lives Ty, estimating the number of years over which the Gioup expects

the asset 1o be used. Az we do for ou intangible assets 1see Section 3.2y, 1f there has been a techneological change or declne In business performs

e the

directors review the value of the assets 1o ensure they hase not fallen below ther depreciated value. if an asset’s vatue falls below s depreciated valae,

a one-off impairment charge is made ayainst profit
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Exchange adjustments 14.4 34.7 (1.7) 47.4
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Section 3 - operating assets and liabilities

(continued)

3.4
Acquisitions

The tollowing secuon discusses businesses acquied by the Group, which
have given 1ise io the adaitions to the acguired ntangitle assets including
goodwilll reported in Section 3.2 and which contributed 1o the Group's profits,
working capital and other balance sheet asset and liabilities.
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3.5
Disposals
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3.6
Provisions

A provision 1s recorded nstead of a payable {see Section 3.1.3) when there 15 less certainty over how much casn will be pad and when the payment might be made.
Provisions are recoginised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; t1s probable that an outflow of resources will be
required 1o settle *he obligation. and the amount can be relably cstmsted Provis.ons are valued at managemernit’s best estimate of the amount required 1o scttio the
present obligation at the balance shest date.

A provision for restruciunng s ecognised when the Group has appsoved a detaied and forreal restructaning plan, and ihe restrctunng has either comimenced or
has been announcea pubiciy,

The recoyrtion of a povision reguires estimation. The prncipal estimates made in respect of the Group's provisons concern the tirming and amount of payinents
required to:

s cover the costs of known restruciuring projects;

* remburse custorne s for potential product warranty clams;

s ensure that curent and former manuiaclunng siles meet relevant ervironmental standarcs,

« reflact the estimated auwtcarne of ongeing legal disputes: and

* provde against ndemnities following the disposal of subsidianes

Analysis of the Group's provisions:
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Section 4 — capital structure and financing costs

What you will find in this section

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and refated financing costs. The directors determine the
appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much cash is raised from shareholders (equity) and how
much is borrowed frem financiai institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group’s activities both now and in the future.
The directors consider the Group's capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year ahead of announcing resuits
in the context of its ability to continue as a geing concern and deliver its business plan.

The Board is mindful that equity capital cannot be easily Hexed and in particular raising new equity would normaily be
likely only in the context of an acqguisition. Debt can be issued and repurchased more easily but frequent changes lead
1o high transaction costs and debt holders are under no obligation to accept repurchase offers,

4.1
Net debt

Net debt is the Group's key measure used to evaluate 1ot outstanding delbt, net of the current cash resources. Some of the Group's borrowings {arxd cashy)

are held i foreign currencies. Movements in foreign exchange rates affect the sterling value of the net debt. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposts, Bank overdrafis that are repayable on derranc and form an integrat part of the Group’s cash management arg included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the stalemaont of cash flows,

a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

2018 |
B tm
N N
o ash L alen Y ourent 132.2
Bsane ol e el Lol {82.6)]
Cash and cash equivalents 49.6 SIS
b} Reconciliation of net cash to movement in net borrowings
2018 ! 2047
£m i £
Rt oo s Casbe L G el s o dadinng e sred e {1 9.7)5 o
Flet i aveda nereparrent of onowano, &g 10me an eohangs ard et deld o posot cogaeed {86.0}} o
e AR
(Increase)/decrease in net debt before acquisitions, disposals and foreign exchange {1 05.?)‘ v
WL et s ulied {1 5,0)%
Curency firmsltier diffegences, (18.6) i
- |
Movement in net borrowings in the year 4] 393)} T
Netasone oot e sbul el e e {265.2}; GED B

Net borrowings at the end of the year ) (i64>5)! PR




c} Analysis of net debt

L i i
AR .
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At 31 December 2018

(121.8)
0.8 - (15.8)
7.1 - -
1.7 (1.6) (18.7)
49.6 (78.8) (375.3)
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(88.6)
(15.0)
(17.1)
(18.6)
(404.5)

4.2
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Fhe Group borrows money from financial institutions & the form ol bonds and other inancal instruments. These generally have ixed mieicst rates and are for

a fixed term or are drawn from committed borrowing faciiities thiat generally Fave fleating interest rates.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.3
Net financing costs

This section detaiis the ncome generated on the Group's nancial assets and the expense rounead on borrowangs and other financial assets and fabilties
The firance meome and expense taken (itg account n arnang at ddiusted earnings only fickides the neome and expense arising on cash balances,
borowings and retrement henefit obfigations. The finance income or expense on mark-to market movements on interest and forsign exchange derivatives
and other financing costs are excluded fror adjusled sarnings.

Recognised in the income statement

2018 : Y
Financial | Fitier i e
Interest  instruments Total nalrorrents
_ o ‘ o £m £m £m | P
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4.4
Financial risk management

Tre Group's activities expose it to a varnety of financial risks: Interest rate.
foreign exchange and base metal price movernents m addition to funding
and tigudity nsks, The inancial instruments used o manage these risks

themsslves introdute exposure to credt nsk, miarket nsk and guaiddy risk,

This section presents mformation aboul the Group's exposure 10 cach of
these rsks: the Group's objectives, poncio: and processes 100 measuing
and managing rnisks. including eact of the ahove nisks: and the Group's
management of capital.

4.4
Overview

[T AT TS N ST X Y

et frerte e, Cnleony T Uy

LTI P O A I [ N

ECIRITINTN AR I S N A

Sl

Ol Bemed oo eyt

W o r it ot e e

THo s Tomi e Coertas | Dl get et 1 G s G0t pali e Al

T Cary v f oo nal - Jere il pade e e e horee s

[ TENEERIY ¥

R I L e L T e O A I LR AN AP

podepon et e RIS N RSN IERL
E N L R s RIS R [ W R o o I S A IO £

N R AR Il

T b ot

R R R I ST ;
e s interest At reh

e oo

LA [ R N ' BSOS N IR NS IR ER

NIRRT S B S T TR N egladt el

4.4.2
Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if & customer or
countorparty 1o a firancial instrument fails e meel #s contractual ehligations,
and anses princigally from the Group’s recelvables from customers, cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group's banks and other financial assets.
At the end of 27018 these totalled £503.4m (2017 £442 .5m}.

4.4.2.1
Managing credit risk arising from customers
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4,4.2.2
Exposure to cradil nsk 1 respact
of financial assets
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4.4.2.3
Exposure to credit risk in respect
of trade receivables
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.4.2.4 4.4,3.1
Impairment rovisicns for trade receivables fForeign exchange risk

PR TR R I FA TR IR T LT TR L IR T BISTANPI S ISP RI
ey SRR The Groun pubishes consolidated accounts in sterling but conducts much
of I1s ginbal business N other currencies, As a result 1tis subject 10 he nshs
2018 | A7 associated with foreign exchange movements affecting transaction costs
{"transachonal nsk’), translation of forewgn profts proft translation nsk's
Gross  |mpairment ; Cposs M rmand and translation of the unaerlying nel assets of foreign operations
—_ £m Em ! i — A fassel transiation risk’),
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c} Management of asset translation risk
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4.4.3
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and commodily prices wili aflect the Group's
income and cash flows of the value of its financial instruments. The chjective
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters,

Under the management of the central treasury function, the Group enters
into derivatives in the ordinary course of business and also manages financial
liabilities in order to mitigate market risks. All such transactions are carried
out within the guidelines set by the Board and are undertaken only if they
relate to underlying exposures,



d) Currency profile of assets and liabilities

Assets
subject '
Exchange to interest Other Total
Cash- Debt contracts rate risk net assets net assets '
Z2ms8 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
£m £m fm £m £m £m
Sy 41 - 485 526 {11) 516
ORI RN - (248) 1) (259) 318 58
(11) (207) {218) (434) 520 86 T
20 - (258) (238) 244 [+ T
56 77 (@5 . (405) 1071 866 b
. RN AT N |
Pl ' o g el T bal e Pl g AR . '

44372
Interast rate risk

The Group s exposed to a number of global interest rates through assets and halxidies denominated in jurisdictions to which these rates are applied, most
notably US, Eurozone and UK rates, The Group is exposed to these because markel movements in these rates will increase or decrease the inleres! charge
recognised in the Group income staternent,

a} Management of interest rate risk
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

b) Interest rate risk profile
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The commaodity inputs to the Group's production process typically consist
of base metals. Commodity risk for the Group is the risk that the prices of
these inputs could rise, thus reducing Group profits.
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4.4.4 Capital management concerns the decision as to how the Group's actvities
, . , are financed and specifically, how much of the Group capital is provided by
L_qu”dﬂy risk porrowings {or debt} and how much of it is financed with equity raised from
the issue of share capital.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial The Beard’s policy is to maintain a balance sheet with a broad capital
obligations as they fall due. base and the strength to sustain the future development of the business

including acquisitions. This section discusses how the Board views the
- capital base of the Group and the impact on leverage, distribution policy
a} Management of liquidity risk and investment policy.
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Capital base
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4.5.4
Dividend policy and share Buy-hachks

E A L U S

B N T A TR TRE

ER PRI (NCRTRILE R A

ST

L L T b

A I T o B O o ST R I LA

.
[

A

455
Weighted average cost of capital

L O T N R L TR .
[ R vt ek b e e
LS T T (S R Y | S T R I e A A RN PRI IO LT

IS RN T nESS o er e ot T oo et Qe e et

tedis

HER T AN SR

46
Debt and credit facilities

This section provides detais regarding the specific bonowings that the Group
has In place 1o satisfy the debt elerments of the capital management policy
discussed above.

4.6.1
Undrawn committed facilities
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.6.2
Terms and deit repayment schedule
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4.7
Fair value

Financial Instiuments included in the financial statements are weasured at ether fair value or amorlised cost. The measurerment of this far value can in sore
cases be subective, and can depend on the inputs used in the calctatons, The Group generaly calculates its own farr values uzing comparable chserved
rarket prices and a valuation model using 1 ¢ respective and relevant market daia for the instrumen: ey valued.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)
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4.7.3

Falr value hierarchy

4.8
Market risk sensitivity analysis on financial instruments

This section shows how the far value of financial nstruments presented can change tor a given change in markel rates.

121

The values shown In the table below are estimates of the impact on financial instruments only. The ns<s that these financial mstruments have been acquired

{0 hedge will move in an opposile direction.
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.9
Retirement Benefits

IM] offers a number of defined benefit anrangements to employees that will not be paid until more than a vear atter the period in which they are eamed, tor
example pension benefits, jubilee plans, post-employment and other long-term ermployee benefit arrangements.

There is a significant degree of estimation invalved in predicling the ultimate benefils payable under these defined henefit arrangements in respect of which
the Group holts rel habimes onits balance sheet, This section explans how the value of these beneSts pavable and any assets funding the arrangements
are accounted for in the Group financial staterments and gives detadls of the key assumplions upon which the estimations are based.

Assets and labilites for defined contribution arrangements are rminimal as they refate solely 1o short-term tining differences between the perod during which
benefits have accrued and when contributions are paid inlo schemes,

Defined contributian FOC) Arrangoments where the emplayer pays tixed cantrbutions inlo an external fund on behalf of the employee (who 1s responsible for
making the mvestment decision and theretore assumes the risks and rewards of fund performance). Contnbutions 1o these arrangerments are recognised in the
income statement as incurred.

Defined benefit {'DB'): A defned benefit pension plan is a pension arrangemerit in which the employer promises a specified annual benefil on retirernent that
is predetermined by a formuta based on the employee's earnings history, lenure of service and age, rather than depending directly on individual investrent
returns. In some cases, Mg benefit is pald as a Jump surm on leaving the Company or witle in the service of the Company rather than as a pension. The Group
undenwriles one or more risks in meeting these obligations and thercfore any net liability or surplus in these arrangements 1s shown on the Group balance sheet.

4.9.1
Sumimary information

Net pension deficil: £52.3m (2017: deficit of £77.9m}
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(continued)

4972
The UK and overseas pension funds
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The UK Funds
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4.9.3.1
Cash flow impacts
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

Life expeclancy at age 85 (UK Funds only) |
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4.9.4

Overal reconcifiation of changes in the net surplus/tiability) for defined benefit obligations
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Section 4 — capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.10
Share capital

The ordinary shareholders of the Graup own the Company, This section shows how the total number of oiainary shares in issue has changed during the

year and how many of these ordinary shares are held as treasury shares or in Dimpioyee Benefit Trusts, to be used to satisty share options and awards to
direclors and ernployecs of the Company. as part of employes share ownership programmes. This section also sets out the dividends paid or proposed

1o be paid to shareholders.

A 101
Number and value of shares
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Dividends
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs

(continued)

4.11
Share-based payments

The Group uses share opfion schemes to reward and 1efam its emplovees. The estimatad cost of awarding these shate options s charged to the incorme
statement over the period that the Group benefits fram the emplovees’ services, This cost 1s then added back 10 retaned sarrings. 16 refiect that there s
no pverall inpact on the Group's balance sheet untif the shares arc 1issued o the employees when the oplions are exercised.

The individual share option schemes, the numiber of eptions outstandmg under each of them, the estimaled cost of 1rese options recoyrised n the Income
slaterrent and the assumptions used v arriving at this estimated cost are described in this section,
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Cutstanding share options
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411.2
Schemes under v/hich options
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L1.5
Other share-based payment arrangsments
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Section 4 - capital structure and financing costs
(continued)

4.11.4
Oplions granted during the yvea

Wieighited
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Moverment in outstanding options in the year
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4.11.6
Share-based payment charge for the year

4117
Share-hased payment valuation methodology
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Section 5 - other notes

5.1 5.4
Contingent liabilities Significant accounting policies
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Section 5 - other notes
(continued)
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Section 5 - other notes
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The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018,
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the financiat statements
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Cverview of our audit approach
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of IMI plc

(continued)
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Company balan'ce sheet_

at 31 December 2018

Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Sk Reder oo Rereed
rensan CERINSISE
L b
| B [ - s
- -
. i
Retained profit for the year 2375 2375
Dividends paid on ordinary shares’ (107.9) (107.9)
Shares issued in the year - 0.6 0.6
Share-based payments 7.0 7.0
Shares acquired for:
employee share scheme trust ) . 8O (6O
At 31 December 2018 81.8 13.3 174.4 320.0 589.5
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Company notes to the financial statements

C1. Significant accounting policies
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C4. Dividends
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C5. Fixed assets - investments
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2n7
L

Falling due for payment after more than one year:

Al s

Falling due for payment within one year:

£ RO | RIS T SO PN = PER TR P 313.9”‘

Arnronnt s evae ey ol vnnelakar oy 104.2 - 1124
4181 UBEG
C7. Deferred tax
2018 2m7
£m Ciny
The deferred tax included in the balance sheet is as follows:
‘{ ITn'Vl{ﬂ,‘L’(ﬂ Lo ¢ hles A d sbaae baoed g n enls 7 7 ) ) o _3_2 |
Dederred tax usact v loed 0 tb e babane e <hpet ) o 2_%_ N
Reconciiation of movement in deferred tax asset:
AT darwary 2015 2.7 1
Dederred tax credi in thie wofl ana loss aveount (0.4) 1.3
Deterred tax credd i ecuny - o foa) U
At 31 December 2018 2.2 P

‘ e

e snhant ey e ociedin CONG L reduce il e rale to 19 ham b A

Chrnons (o the sote of LRCenpo 2l Loy

Ire aelened tax nalwece Nas beea cob laten based oo the gt apple b SRen e DEances, se erpecTan 1o 1everse St s mvgnly 1713017

Tard ey 170 o Y Apal 2020,

1



156 IMI plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Company notes to the financial statements
(continued)

CB. Other creditors falling due within one year
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)
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Subsidiary undertakings

(continued)

Annual Report and Acgounls 2018
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Geographic distribution of employees
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Five year summary

Adiusted revenuc £m Adjusted profit before tax™ £'m Adjusied Group revenue by geography 2018
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income statement
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T i Tm m m
ST b, 10 e [ 1,907
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Seinste oporating o’ LG 265.5
I ol e e 1 251.2
o LTSI £ B 6.8
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Profit before tax from continuing operations 212.9
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Group sales by destination
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Eaimngs and dividends

20 o 2018
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Balance sheet
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Statistics
) =014 2015 2016 201 2018
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Shareholder and

Annocuhcement of trading results
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